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SUCCESS AND RESPONSIBILITY GO TOGETHER



British American Tobacco Bangladesh believes that the
business has a key role to play in helping society to achieve
the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth,
environmental protection and social progress in ways that
will build value for all our stakeholders, including our
shareholders. Our Business Principles and our Standards of
Business Conduct set out what we require of ourselves and
employees in terms of responsible corporate behaviour and
personal integrity.

Afforestation

Our flagship CSR activity, Afforestation programme, began
in 1980. So far, the company has distributed approximately
7.15 crores saplings throughout Bangladesh, including 40
lakh saplings in 2011. This relentless effort makes our
programme one of the largest private sector driven affores-
tation programmes in the country. We are committed to
continue this programme in the future in the wake of a
global and national drive as well as Government initiative to
combat the adverse effects of climate change. In 2011, the
Company received a number of awards for the afforesta-
tion drive across the country.

Probaho

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity of safe
drinking water due to Arsenic contamination. Probaho, a
community project by British American Tobacco Bangla-
desh, provides 175,000 litres of safe drinking water free
from Arsenic and other impurities to arsenic prone rural
communities everyday. This initiative is aligned with the
Government’s aim to achieve the Millennium Development
Goal of securing sustainable access to safe drinking water.
So far, 34 water filtration plants have been installed, using
government approved community based water filtration
technology, in Jhenaidah, Chuadanga, Meherpur, Kushtia,
Tangail, Manikganj, Satkhira, Gopalganj, Lalmonirhat,
Kurigram, Jamalpur and Madaripur districts ensuring pure
drinking water for approximately 87,500 people every day.

Deepto

To complement Bangladesh Government’s efforts in the
renewable energy sector, British American Tobacco Bangla-
desh (BATB) has undertaken a project to install Solar Home
Systems in remote areas of Chittagong Hill Tracts, free of
cost. The Project is titled ‘Deepto’ (meaning lighted). Under
Deepto, BATB has already installed 576 units of Solar Home
Systems in four remote villages in Bandarban and Khagra-
chari districts, giving rural families their first access to
electricity at home.

Partnering with communities.
Enabling progress.




Head Office, BAT Bangladesh



“British American Tobacco
Bangladesh strongly believes

that success and responsibility
go hand in hand. As the largest
private sector tax payer of the
country, we are playing our
part as aresponsible corporate

citizen. , ’

Arun Kaul
Managing Director
British American Tobacco Bangladesh
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ABOUT US

The presence of British American Tobacco in this part of
the world can be traced back to 1910. Beginning the journey
as Imperial Tobacco 101years ago, the Company set up its
first sales depot at Armanitolain Dhaka. After the partition
of India in 1947, Pakistan Tobacco Company was
established in 1949. The first factory in Bangladesh (the
then East Pakistan) was setup in 1949 at Fauzdarhat in
Chittagong. In 1965, the second factory of Pakistan
Tobacco Company went into production in Mohakhali,
Dhaka. Thereafter it became Bangladesh Tobacco
Company Limited in 1972 immediately after Bangladesh's
independence. In 1998, the Company changed its name and
identity to British American Tobacco Bangladesh ("BAT
Bangladesh") aligning the corporate identity with other
operating companies in the British American Tobacco
Group.

BAT Bangladesh is a part of BAT plc, the world's most
international tobacco group, with brands sold in 180
markets around the world.

We make high quality tobacco products for the diverse
preferences of consumers, spanning the business 'from
crop to consumer' and we are committed to embedding
the principles of corporate social responsibility Group-
wide.

Our Shareholders

We were among the first companies to be listed on the
Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and currently
ranked amongst the top 10 companies in terms of market
capitalisation. British American Tobacco Group holds
65.91% of our shares; 17.52% is owned by Investment
Corporation of Bangladesh; Shadharan Bima Corporation,
Bangladesh Development Bank Limited, Government of
People's Republic of Bangladesh, SenaKallyan Sangstha own

4.71% and a further 11.86% is owned by other shareholders.

Our Portfolio of Products

Our success comes from satisfying informed adult smokers.
We manufacture and market high quality and well
established international cigarette brands as well as local
brands. The brand portfolio of BAT Bangladesh currently
consists of Benson & Hedges, John Player Gold Leaf, Pall
Mall, Capstan, Star, Scissors, Bristol, Pilot and Hollywood.

Our Operations

We grow our tobacco leaves through our registered
farmers in Kushtia, Chittagong, Manikganj and Rangpur
zones. Both our Head Office and Cigarette Manufacturing
Plant are located in Mohakhali, Dhaka. We have one Green
Leaf Threshing Plant in Kushtia and a Redrying Plant in
Manikgan;.

Our People - Our Strength

BAT Bangladesh employs more than 1,200 people directly
and about 50,000 people indirectly as farmers, distributors
and local suppliers. We take great pride in saying that BAT
Bangladesh is one of the most preferred employers in the
country. It is our pool of talented people who bring their
difference everyday and make BAT Bangladesh a great
place towork for all of us.

Our Contribution

BAT Bangladesh is one of the largest multinational compa-
nies in Bangladesh. Consequently, we are also one of the
largest private sector tax payers in the form of Supplemen-
tary Duty and Value Added Tax. Over time, we have
successfully established ourselves as the company contrib-
uting to economic, social and human resource develop-
ment.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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Our Business Principles

THE PRINCIPLE OF
MUTUAL
BENEFIT

The principle of Mutual Benefit is the basis on which we build our
relationships with the stakeholders. We are primarily in business to build
long term shareholder value and we believe the best way to do this is to seek
tounderstand and take account of the needs of all our stakeholders.

THE PRINCIPLE OF
RESPONSIBLE PRODUCT
STEWARDSHIP

The principle of Responsible Product Stewardship is the basis on
which we meet consumer demand for a legal product thatis a cause of
serious diseases. Therefore, our products and brands should be developed,
manufactured and marketed in aresponsible manner. We aspire to develop
tobacco products with critical mass appeal that will, over time, be
recognised by scientificand regulatory authorities as posing substantially
reduced risks to health.

THE PRINCIPLE OF
GOOD CORPORATE
CONDUCT

The principle of Good Corporate Conduct is the basisonwhichallour
businesses should be managed. Business success brings withitan
obligation for high standards of behaviour and integrity in everything we
doandwherever we operate. These standards should not be compromised
forthe sake of results.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman

Mr. Golam Mainuddin has been the Chairman of British American Tobacco
Bangladesh since August 2008. After obtaining his Master of Science degree
from Dhaka University, Mr. Mainuddin pursued the first 30 years of his career in
the agro-based industry followed by corporate management over the next
decade. He was a Tea Garden Manager at Duncan Brothers from 1969 to 1982,
and then joined Bangladesh Tobacco Company to soon become the Head of
Leaf in 1985. He was appointed to the Board of Directors in 1986, and was
given the responsibility of Deputy Managing Director in 1997. Over the 26
years in BAT Bangladesh, he was instrumental in achieving self sufficiency in
tobacco production with strong focus on quality improvements to meet the
international standards required for domestic use and export purposes while
driving wider introduction of Bangladeshi tobacco in the world market. He
played a key role in popularizing the tree plantation program of BAT
Bangladesh, which was greatly recognized throughout the country. Mr.
Mainuddin serves as an Independent Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI) Bangladesh. He is also the
Director of Federation of Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce and Industries
(FBCCI), a Committee member of Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce and
Industries (MCCI), and an Executive Committee member of Bangladesh
Employers Federation (BEF). He has recently been elected as a CIP
(Commercially Important Person) by the Government of Bangladesh.

Mr. Kamrul Hasan, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kamrul Hasan obtained B.A. (Hons.) and M.A. in English (st position) from
University of Chittagong. He completed diploma degree in Public Manage-
ment and Development from Connecticut State University, USA. He also
completed Diploma in Development Planning from Planning Academy, Dhaka.
He was former Secretary of the Ministry of Fisheries & Livestock and the
Ministry of Defence. Prior to this position, he was Additional Secretary in the
Ministry of Finance (Finance Division). Before that he worked in various impor-
tant senior positions of Government of Bangladesh i.e. Economic Relations
Division of Finance Ministry, Chairman of Jiban Bima Corporation, Director of
Telephone Shilpa Shangstha, WASA Board and Grameen Bank Board. Mr. Kamrul
Hasan was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of BAT Bangla-
desh in 2004, representing Government’s shares in the Company till July 2011.
He then has been appointed one of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company. He was awarded ‘University BLUE' by Chittagong University in 1974
for his remarkable achievements in study and extra curricular activities. He
was a national level tennis player during 1972-1979.
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Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, after having completed Master's from the University
of Dhaka, joined Bangladesh Civil Service in 1982. He has also earned an MA
degree in Economics from Manchester University, England. He further received
a Post Graduate Diploma in Development Administration and Management
from UK. He has been appointed as Secretary of Ministry of Industries on
September 2010. Before this, Mr. Siddiqui led Bangladesh Chemical Industries
Corporation as the Chairman. In his around 30 year successful career in the civil
service, he held several important positions in both field administration and
different Ministries. Mr. Siddiqui joined BAT Bangladesh Board of Directors in
October 2010, representing Government’s shares in the Company.

Mr. Syed Monjurul Islam, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Syed Monjurul Islam is a career civil servant. He passed B.Com. (Hons.)
from the University of Dhaka majoring in Finance and also did his MBA (Finance)
from IBA of the same university. Later he pursued a PGD in ‘Development
Planning Techniques’ from the ‘Institute of Social Studies’ of The Netherlands.
Mr. Islam has been working in important positions for the Government of
Bangladesh for the last 28 years as a member of Bangladesh Civil Service
(Administration) cadre. He worked in different Ministries/Divisions and
organizations of the Government in progressively higher position. However, he
mostly worked in the area of Public Finance and Commerce. An illustrious
careerist, Mr. Islam is now the Additional Secretary, Finance Division, Ministry
of Finance. Mr. Islam joined in the Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh in July
201, representing Government’s shares in the Company.

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, born in 1953, obtained B.Com. (Hons.) and M.Com. in
Management (1st Class). He completed his Post Graduation studies in
Investment Planning, Appraisal and Management of Development Finance
Institutions in Bradford University, Bradford, United Kingdom. He was
appointed Managing Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) in
July 2010. Prior to this position, he had been Deputy Managing Director of
Agrani Bank since 2007. Before that he was the General Manager of ICB. He was
appointed Non-Executive Director of BAT Bangladesh in July 2010, representing
Government’s shares in the Company.

Mr. Arun Kaul, Managing Director

Mr. Arun Kaul was appointed as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in
July 2010. Prior to this assignment, he was General Manager of BAT Taiwan. Mr.
Kaul joined BAT group in 1996 as the Area Country Head of BAT Oman and
thereafter held various senior leadership roles in BAT Group such as Country
Manager - Philippines; General Manager - Egypt; Program Director - BAT Iran;
Commercial Director - Vietnam etc. Arun obtained Master's Degree in
Marketing Management from Kellogg Graduate School of Management,
Northwestern University, U.S.A. in 1984. He holds an MBA degree majoring in
Marketing from Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta in 1981 and a Bachelor
degree in Mechanical Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi in
1978.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 13



Mr. Shehzad Munim, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shehzad Munim joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 1997 after
graduating from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of Dhaka
University. He worked in different marketing roles within BAT Bangladesh
before being seconded to BAT New Zealand as Group Brand Manager in 2003
and there he subsequently took over the role of Head of Brand Marketing in
2005. In 2006 he took the challenge of developing the innovations process in
BAT Australasia as Product and Packaging Innovations Manager. In 2007,
Shehzad returned to BAT Bangladesh as Head of Brand Marketing. In 2008 he
assumed the role of Head of Marketing Bangladesh and delivered very strong
business results. After completing a very successful tenure as Head of
Marketing in Bangladesh, Shehzad has taken over the challenging role of Area
Head of Marketing, South Asia Area.

Mr. Anthony Yong, Finance Director

Mr. Anthony Yong joined British American Tobacco Asia Pacific Region in 2000
as Regional Finance Manager after having spent 8 years in KPMG performing
audit and advisory services. He was then transferred to British American
Tobacco Malaysia Berhad in 2001 where he performed a variety of finance roles
as well as a stint in Strategic Planning and Programme Management Office. In
2008, Anthony was appointed as the Head of Finance for British American
Tobacco Switzerland before returning to Asia Pacific in 2011 as Finance
Director for British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited.

Mr. Zakir Ibne Hai, Corporate and Regulatory Affairs Director

Mr. Zakir Ibne Hai joined BAT Bangladesh as Corporate Communications
Manager in 2007 after working for subsidiaries of Reckitt Benckiser, Bayer and
Axiata in Bangladesh and India. He moved to the role of Regulatory Affairs
Manager in 2008 and assumed the responsibility of Head of Corporate and
Regulatory Affairs (CORA) of BAT Bangladesh in May 2009. He has been
inducted as a Director in the Board of BAT Bangladesh in 2011. Mr. Hai has
versatile experience in areas of communication, regulatory affairs, marketing,
stakeholder and media management. He holds a degree in Economics and
completed his MBA from IBA, Dhaka University in 1996.

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman, Company Secretary

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman is a fellow member (FCS) of Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh and associate member of Internal Audit Institute.
After obtaining a Master’s degree in Accounting from University of Dhaka, he
completed Chartered Accountancy course and Chartered Secretary professional
degree. Mr. Aziz joined BAT Bangladesh in March 2002 in Company Secretarial
function. He took the challenges of cross functional movements in his twenty
years career span which made him well experienced in company secretarial,
finance, audit, corporate and banking affairs. He worked as visiting lecturer on
corporate affairs in different private universities and professional institutes.
Being the Secretary General of Intellectual Property Association of Bangladesh
and Vice-Chairman of IP Committee of FBCCI, he works with different national
and international organisations for addressing IPR issues in Bangladesh.
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BAT Bangladesh’s
afforestation
programme

is the largest
afforestation effort
by any private sector
business entity in
Bangladesh.

Strip plantation, Jhenaidah

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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Mr. Arun Kaul, Managing Director

Mr. Arun Kaul was appointed as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in
July 2010. Prior to this assignment, he was General Manager of BAT Taiwan. Mr.
Kaul joined BAT group in 1996 as the Area Country Head of BAT Oman and
thereafter held various senior leadership roles in BAT Group such as Country
Manager - Philippines; General Manager - Egypt; Program Director - BAT Iran;
Commercial Director - Vietnam etc. Arun obtained Master’s Degree in Market-
ing Management from Kellogg Graduate School of Management, Northwestern
University, U.S.A. in 1984. He holds an MBA degree majoring in Marketing from
Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta in 1981 and a Bachelor degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi in 1978.

Mr. Anthony Yong, Finance Director

Mr. Anthony Yong joined British American Tobacco Asia Pacific Region in 2000
as Regional Finance Manager after having spent 8 years in KPMG performing
audit and advisory services. He was then transferred to British American
Tobacco Malaysia Berhad in 2001 where he performed a variety of finance roles
as well as a stint in Strategic Planning and Programme Management Office. In
2008, Anthony was appointed as the Head of Finance for British American
Tobacco Switzerland before returning to Asia Pacific in 2011 as Finance Direc-
tor for British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited.

Mr. Zakir Ibne Hai, Corporate and Regulatory Affairs Director

Mr. Zakir lbne Hai joined BAT Bangladesh as Corporate Communications
Manager in 2007 after working for subsidiaries of Reckitt Benckiser, Bayer and
Axiata in Bangladesh and India. He moved to the role of Regulatory Affairs
Manager in 2008 and assumed the responsibility of Head of Corporate and
Regulatory Affairs (CORA) of BAT Bangladesh in May 2009. He has been
inducted as a Director in the Board of BAT Bangladesh in 2011. Mr. Hai has
versatile experience in areas of communication, regulatory affairs, marketing,
stakeholder and media management. He holds a degree in Economics and
completed his MBA from IBA, Dhaka University in 1996.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED 17



18

Mr. Raihan Rahman, Head of Marketing

Mr. Raihan Rahman, joined BAT Bangladesh as Assistant IT Analyst in 1997 after
graduating from University of South Dakota. He later moved to Marketing as a
Territory Officer in 1998. Subsequently, he worked in various roles within
Marketing department specializing in brand and portfolio strategy. He took
over as the Head of Trade Marketing & Distribution in 2007. During his time as
Head of TM&D, BAT Bangladesh sold record volumes for two consecutive
years. Having successfully led sales and distribution, he was appointed as the
Head of Marketing in 2010.

Mr. Zafar Aslam Khan, Head of Supply Chain

Mr. Zafar Aslam Khan joined BAT as a Management Trainee after completion of
his Mechanical Engineering degree in March 1996. Over the last 16 years he has
worked in various strategic roles in Supply Chain Function within Pakistan
Tobacco Company and as Programme Manager for the Regional Supply Chain
Programme in Malaysia which was involved in the implementation of global
supply chain strategy. He has also served in the Marketing function and led a
new market access project for a developing country. Mr. Khan joined BAT
Bangladesh in 2010 as the Head of Supply Chain.
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Mr. Aynul Kabir, Head of Legal

Mr. Aynul Kabir completed LL.B. (Hons.) from University of Dhaka in 1996 and LL.M.
from University of Leeds in 1998. Subsequently, he enrolled himself in Nottingham
Trent University and was Called to the Bar from the Honourable Society of
Lincoln’s Inn in 1999. He returned to Bangladesh and joined Lee, Khan & Partners,
one of the top corporate law firms, as an Associate and in 2001 he became a
partner of the law firm. Mr. Kabir joined BAT Bangladesh in 2006 as Legal Affairs
Manager being in charge of litigation management. Subsequently, he looked after
corporate and commercial issues as Corporate and Commercial Counsel. In
December 2009, Mr. Kabir was seconded to Ceylon Tobacco Company as Head of
Legal where he played a key role in instilling legal best practices, strengthening
the company’s position on various contractual, labour and commercial legal issues
and raising awareness on the role of legal in the business. He returned to BAT
Bangladesh in April 2011 as the Head of Legal function.

Ms. Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources

Ms. Rumana Rahman joined BAT Bangladesh in 2001 as a Management Trainee
and performed various roles covering specialist areas like reward, talent and
generalist streams of business partnering including the area of Supply Chain HR.
Before taking over the Head of HR role, Rumana was posted in Hong Kong, Asia
Pacific Regional Office as the Regional HR Planning & Reporting Manager.
Rumana is the first local female Top Team member of BAT Bangladesh.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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BRITISH AMERICAN
TOBACCO
BANGLADESH

SUCCESS AND RESPONSIBILITY GO TOGETHER

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company
Limited will be held on 11 April 2012, at 10:30 a.m. in the Ballroom of The Pan Pacific Sonargaon Hotel, 107 Kazi Nazrul
Islam Avenue, Dhaka 1215, for transaction of the following businesses:

1

To receive and adopt the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011, and the Reports of the Directors and
the Auditor thereon.

2. To declare the final dividend for the year ended 31December 2011
3. To elect Directors.
4. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration.
qenfal—
20 March 2012 Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Company Secretary
Notes:

Notice is hereby given that 14 March 2012 shall be considered as the Record Date for entitlement of dividend for
the year ended 31December 2011 and for ascertaining the number of shareholders, who will be eligible to attend
the 39th AGM of the Company.

A shareholder wishing to appoint a Proxy must deposit a duly stamped Proxy Form at the Company’s registered
office by 10:30 a.m. of 9 April 2011.

Admission into the auditorium will be allowed on submission of attendance slip sent with the Notice.
Only Shareholders or their appointed proxies can attend the meeting.
No children will be allowed at the venue of Annual General Meeting.

Except shareholders and valid proxies, no one will be allowed to have access to the registration process.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED

21



KEY HIGHLIGHTS

OF DIRECTORS' REPORT-20T1

Gross Turnover: Tk.7,536 crores

Profit (PBT) improved by 20%; 491 crores in 2011 (409 crores: 2010)

In 2011, the Company contributed Tk.5,445 crores as taxes

Leaf exports generated US$ 39.5mil.in foreign currency income

For 2011, 5090 interim dividend & recommended 37090 final dividend

The Company contributed almost 2/3rd of total tax collections from the cigarette industry

PR

We had another very good year in 2011 and we continued to drive profit and
market share growth, delivering real value for our shareholders.

22
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DIRECTORS' REPORT-2011

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to
present this report and audited annual accounts of British
American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited (BAT
Bangladesh) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Throughout 2011, the Company consistently focused on
the key strategic pillars of Growth, Productivity, Responsi-
bility and Winning Organisation.

GROWTH

Your Company achieved desired business results in 2011
despite challenges from the external environment and
competitors throughout the year. The Company marked a
growth of 1.7% in volume in line with industry growth.
This growth was achieved through hard work and dedica-
tion of our people, excellent performance of our premium
brands riding on strong equity and successful launch of a
new brand in the Low Segment. Performance of our
brands was resilient, despite the indexing gap between
Low Segment and all other segments continuing to widen
as well as the launch of a competitor brand in the Premium
Segment.

Like previous years, 2011 featured a strong first half year
performance and then a slower second half as the market
recovered from the impact of the mid-year tax-led price
increase. At a time when general inflation was 10.5%,
cigarette pack prices increased by 20-22%, putting
pressure on consumers’ disposable income.

Benson & Hedges and John Player Gold Leaf sales volume
met expectation in 2011 under intense pressure following
the price increases in June. Consistent investment and
consumer-relevant innovations behind these brands have
helped to reinforce their strong brand equity and to retain
the status of being the leading brands in respective
segments. Unfortunately, Star sales declined significantly.
The impact of the price increase, together with the lack of
any real price increase in a large portion of the Low
Segment has caused many consumers to down trade to
Low Segment brands. The Company will focus on arresting
this decline in 2012.

Following the launch of Pilot in 2009 and Bristol in 2010,
BAT Bangladesh managed to get a foothold in the growing
Low Segment. With the launch of a new offer ‘Holly-
wood’, the Company continued its growth momentum in
the Low Segment in 2011. Despite significant competition,
sales of our Low Segment brands are in line with expecta-
tions.

The Company grew its gross turnover to Tk 7,536 crores,
up by 937 crores from the previous year. This increase was
driven by tax-led price increases and volume growth. The
Company also continued tobacco leaf exports, demon-
strating its passion and commitment to improve the
quality and establish Bangladeshi leaf in the international
market. Leaf exports generated US$ 39.5 million in foreign
currency income, up by US$ 0.8 million from the previous
year. However, the leaf export volume declined by 8%
over last year as prices for Bangladeshi leaf became less
attractive than that of neighbouring tobacco exporting

countries due to the 10% export duty introduced in FY
2009-10 National Budget. It is worthwhile to mention that
the neighbouring countries do not have any such export
duty imposed on leaf export.

Profit before tax improved by 20% from Tk. 409 crores
last year to Tk. 491 crores this year. The higher profit
before tax reflects higher volumes, better brand mix and
increased price as well as cost savings and productivity
initiatives driven across the whole Company.

BAT Bangladesh continues to contribute almost 2/3rd of
the total tax collections from the cigarette industry, and
in 2011, the Company contributed Tk. 5,445 crores as
supplementary duty, value added tax and other taxes. This
increase of Tk. 820 crores over last year includes the
impact of prior year adjustment in corporate income tax,
since corporate income tax rate was increased from 27.5%
to 35% for publicly listed cigarette manufacturers in
2011-12 National Budget. The higher corporate tax rate
resulted in a lower profit after tax of Tk. 255 crores, a
decline of 11% from 2010. The Company will continue to
pursue the Government in order to achieve a fair and
reasonable corporate tax rate burden and will support
Government proposals that establish a sustainable level of
tax contribution to the National Exchequer while ensuring
a sustainable growth for the industry.

PRODUCTIVITY

Throughout 2011, Supply Chain implemented different
business plans to drive productivity within the value chain.
Implementation of the improvement initiatives outlined in
2010 led to a stellar performance in leaf sourcing in terms
of cost, quality and yields. Manufacturing team demon-
strated clear improvements in efficiency, quality and
waste reduction whilst delivering highest ever number of
product innovations within desired time to meet market-
ing plans. EH&S standards were enhanced across all sites.
Higher than plan productivity savings were delivered
despite external challenges like inflation, currency devalu-
ation and energy price hikes. All the challenges were
successfully tackled through proactive initiatives. Acceler-
ated implementation of people skill development plans
has been a key priority and will continue in 2012 as well.

During 2011, a comprehensive Supply Chain strategy
encompassing leaf, material sourcing, manufacturing,
logistics and product development has been formulated
and incorporated into the business strategy. The salient
priorities are:

® Delivery of the last phase of our factory transforma-
tion programme in 2012 for continuing improvement
of core manufacturing metrics of overall equipment
effectiveness, quality and waste levels.

® People capability building especially on account of
technical skills to enable the planned initiative for
productivity gains in CPMH (Cigarettes Per Man Hour)
terms.

® Support the quality and growth agenda with a more
flexible and responsive approach to ‘New Product
Introduction’. This would include specific investment
in plant and machineries.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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® |eaf productivity initiatives to continue targeting at
popularization of hybrid varieties (25% higher yield per
hectare), waste reduction and improved quality. The
key focus areas being:
» New green leaf threshing line to be operational in 2012
+ Improvements in warehousing and logistics
« Leaf usable improvement projects

® Leaf import substitution by quality improvement.

® Wrapping material cost reduction initiatives.

RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company believes that the business has a key role to
play in helping society to achieve the necessary sustain-
able balance of economic growth, environmental protec-
tion and social progress in ways that will build value for all
our stakeholders, including our shareholders. Our Business
Principles and our Standards of Business Conduct set out
what we require of ourselves and employees in terms of
responsible corporate behaviour and personal integrity.

Our flagship CSR activity, Afforestation programme,
began in 1980. So far, the Company has distributed
approximately 7.15 crore saplings throughout Bangladesh,
including 40 lakh saplings in 2011. This relentless effort
makes our programme one of the largest private sector
driven afforestation programmes in the country. We are
committed to continuing this programme in the future in
the wake of a global and national drive as well as Govern-
ment initiative to combat the adverse effects of climate
change. In 2011, the Company received a number of
awards for the afforestation drive across the country.

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity of safe
drinking water due to Arsenic contamination. Probaho, a
community project by the Company, provides 175,000
litres of safe drinking water free from Arsenic and other
impurities to arsenic prone rural communities everyday.
This initiative is aligned with the Government’s aim to
achieve the Millennium Development Goal of securing
sustainable access to safe drinking water. So far, 34 water
filtration plants have been installed, using Government
approved community based water filtration technology,
in Jhenaidah, Chuadanga, Meherpur, Kushtia, Tangail,
Manikganj, Satkhira, Gopalganj, Lalmonirhat, Kurigram,
Jamalpur and Madaripur districts ensuring pure drinking
water for approximately 87,500 people every day.

The Company’s supply chain starts with the hard work of
around 34,000 registered farmers within the village
community. The Company ensures that the sources are
sustainable and responsible by proactively setting high
standards for agricultural practices. Our initiatives include
green manuring with dhaincha (Sesbania aculeata) - an
effective approach to enrich soil health and fertility.
Dhaincha is also promoted as alternate fuel in leaf growing
areas. In 2011, we have distributed 152 tons of free dhain-
cha seeds among farmers. Moreover, we also expanded
Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Clubs in collaboration
with the Department of Agricultural Extension to educate
our farmers about the adoption of good agricultural
practices.
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Improving soil health and conserving water are integral
elements of our cultivation practice. We provide the
know-how and bear full costs to install compost pits in the
homesteads of our registered farmers. This significantly
reduces dependency on the use of chemical fertilizers for
agricultural productions and also reduces the cost of
production. We plan to establish 80 compost pits in leaf
growing areas every year. As a water conservation
method, we have introduced proper irrigation systems
which ensure that only the required level of water is used
and there is no wastage.

We acknowledge that we have both an impact and depen-
dence on biodiversity, through our business operations
and use of ecosystem services, such as forest products,
soil and water. We have established 26 biodiversity
corners (on 25 acres of land) with the help of our
registered farmers in order to spread awareness among
the farming communities about the importance of differ-
ent elements in nature and their contribution in the
ecosystem. Our biodiversity corners are located in
Kushtia, Meherpur, Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manik-
ganj, Bandarban, Khagrachari and Cox’s Bazar districts.

The Company has been a keen supporter of Bangladeshi
art arena since inception of Bangladesh. In continuation of
our partnership with Bangladesh’s leading art organisa-
tion, Bengal Gallery of Fine Arts (BGFA), the 2nd BATB -
BGFA Workshop at Kushtia was held where twelve of the
country’s most celebrated painters created artworks on
the theme of ‘Our national anthem’ celebrating 40 years
of the independence of Bangladesh in 2011. Their inspiring
works have been displayed in an exhibition at BGFA and
have been featured in the Company’s 2012 greeting
package including the corporate calendar.

Being a responsible corporate citizen, BAT Bangladesh
abides by all the applicable laws and regulations. The
Company supports sensible tobacco regulation that
balances the preferences of consumers with the interests
of society and enables our business to continue to
compete and prosper. All of our marketing activities are
governed by Smoking and Tobacco Consumption
(Control) Act, 2005 and Smoking and Tobacco Consump-
tion (Control) Rules, 2006 along with our own Interna-
tional Marketing Standards. These principles embody our
commitment to marketing appropriately and only to adult
smokers, as well as compliance to the local laws and
regulations.

The tobacco industry has an economic impact both in
terms of revenue generation for the Government and
supporting direct and indirect employment of employees,
farmers, suppliers and more than 1.2 million retailers. We
therefore, seek that the Government takes an inclusive
and participative approach about tobacco regulation, so
that the regulatory policies reflect the views of all
relevant stakeholders and are practical and enforceable on
the ground.



WINNING ORGANISATION

BAT Bangladesh is driven by a culture of innovation,
transformation and growth. We believe that progressive
growth is the outcome of an organisation where the
people are engaged in the business and believe that the
organisation fosters ‘a great place to work’ culture. The
2011 business agenda has demonstrated how people can
deliver results in the face of a dynamic ever-changing
market environment. In line with our agenda of making
BAT Bangladesh ‘a great place to work’, significant invest-
ment has gone into people development in 2011. The
introduction of a modern technical training centre to
continuously up-skill the workforce, renovation of the
recreation club, dispensary and canteen facilities to
international standards demonstrate BAT Bangladesh's
continued success in addressing advanced workplace
facilities.

2011 has been a year when our focus on people develop-
ment has delivered high results building on the success of
previous years. BAT Bangladesh's newly developed
Mentoring programme is a highly successful leadership
development opportunity which has become a global

benchmark. Alongside this, we have also been able to
successfully develop our managers internationally with
over 20 managers spending stints in other BAT organisa-
tions globally for international leadership development.

In line with the Company’s belief that we draw strength
from diversity, we have continued to recruit the best in
class management talent in Management Trainees as well
as some of the best performing mid-career recruits. 2011
was the year that ‘Battle of Minds’ moved onto its 8th
year. Like the years preceding 2011, Battle of Minds has
engaged some of the best Universities across the country
and has successfully attracted talent to BAT Bangladesh.
Over 1,000 students participated this year and more than
100 faculty members were involved in various stages.

The Company's aim towards delivering a highly engaged
workforce is further enforced by the level of initiatives
taken to bring its people together in various Company
events. The Company’s football tournament which is
hosted by the Managing Director himself along with other
events such as Family Day, Kid's Carnival and Picnic are
testament to that.

Strip plantation, Kushtia

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR 2011

The key operating and financial data for the year 2011 along with immediate preceding three years are mentioned
below:

(All amount in Taka '000)

2011 2010 2009 2008
The profit for the year before providing for taxation is 4,913,656 4,093,144 2,793,626 2,248,355
Out of which provision for taxation has been made of 2,363,065 1,214,555 725,060 579,577

2,550,591 2,878,589 2,068,566 1,668,778

The Directors recommend the following appropriations:

Transfer to Revenue Reserves 30,591 298,589 268,566 228,778
Interim cash dividend @ 50% i.e.Tk.5 per share for 2011 300,000
Final cash dividend @ 370% i.e.Tk.37 per share for 2011 2,220,000 2,580,000 | 1,800,000 @ 1,440,000

2,550,591 2,878,589 | 2,068,566 1,668,778

DIVIDEND

An interim cash dividend of 50% i.e. Tk. 5 per share amounting to Tk. 300,000,000 was paid in November 2011. In view
of the performance of the Company and the current cash position, the Board of Directors is recommending a final cash
dividend of 370% i.e. Tk. 37 (thirty seven) per share amounting to Tk. 2,220,000,000 for the year 2011, to be approved
in the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company. As aresult, the total cash dividend for the year 2011 will amount to
420%.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Kamrul Hasan, Mr. Syed Monjurul Islam, Mr. Zakir Ibne Hai and Mr. Anthony Yong who were appointed to the Board
after the last Annual General Meeting shall retire in the meeting. Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman shall also retire from the Board
by rotation at the 39th Annual General Meeting. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will be proposed for re-election
at the 39th Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached an age above 65 years shall retire at the 39th Annual General Meeting in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Golam Mainuddin, being eligible, will be proposed for
re-election at the 39th Annual General Meeting for one year i.e. until the conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors would like to recognise the excellent contribution towards the continuous improvement of the
Company by Mr. Mark Drain and Mr. Md. Mahbubur Rahman during their tenure and wish them every success in the
future.

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors also report that:

e The Financial Statements of the Company present a true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs, result of
its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial Statements and Accounting

estimates are reasonable and prudent.

The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS).

The internal control system is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.

There was no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The deviation from the operating result of last year is reported in the details to the accounts.
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AUDITORS

The Auditor of BAT Bangladesh will retire at the 39th Annual General Meeting. According to Securities and Exchange
Commission Order circulated on 27th July 2011, the Company cannot appoint any firm of chartered accountants as
Statutory Auditors for a consecutive period exceeding three years. Hence, Rahman Rahman Huq will not be re-appointed
for the year 2012 as Statutory Auditors. Considering the available options, the Board recommends A. Qasem & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as the new Auditor of the Company for the year 2012 to the 39th Annual General Meeting for
its approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

BAT Bangladesh has long been committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Our corporate
governance framework is directed towards achieving our business objectives in a manner which is responsible and in
accordance with its high standards of honesty, transparency and accountability.

These principles are reflected in our Standards of Business Conduct, which have been in place for many years. All our
employees are expected to live up to these principles and guidance on them is communicated regularly throughout the
Company through training and awareness programmes. In addition, the principles set out within our Statement of
Business Principles are designed to meet the expectations placed on us by our various stakeholders.

Further details on the Corporate Governance Compliance Statement have been enclosed herewith as Annexure |l.
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK ASSESSMENT OUTLINE

It is not the intention to provide an extensive analysis of all risks affecting the Company. Not all of the factors mentioned
are within the control of the Company and other factors besides those addressed may affect the performance of the
business. Some risks may be unknown at present and other risks, currently regarded as immaterial, could turn out to be
material in the future. The risk factors and processes in place to manage them should be considered in the context of the
Company’s internal control framework, which is addressed in the Statement of Internal Control.

OTHER REPORTS

Securities and Exchange Commission’s reports related to Board Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting and Shareholdings
are enclosed herewith as Annexure I.

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors would like to express their deep appreciation to the management and employees for their
unrelenting commitment throughout 2011. We would like to place on record our thanks to our valued business partners
for their support and loyalty. The above listed achievements are the result of the commitment and diligence of all our
employees and business partners.

In addition, the Board of Directors also expresses their gratitude to the shareholders of the Company for their

continuing support, as we continue to take BAT Bangladesh forward as a leading player within the Bangladesh Business
community.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

liudiond e

Arun Kaul Anthony Yong
Managing Director Finance Director

1March 2012
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Annexure |

Board meetings and Shareholdings of the Company for the year 2011 are mentioned below in compliance of Securities
and Exchange Commission’s notification no SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated 20 February 2006.

Board Meetings

The Board met six times during the year 2011. The Company Secretary and Finance Director were present in the Board
meetings. The attendance by each Director is mentioned below:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Mr. Arun Kaul

Mr. Kamrul Hasan

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui
Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman
Mr. Syed Monjurul Islam
Mr. Anthony Yong

Mr. Zakir lbne Hai

Mr. Shehzad Munim

(Appointed on 12 July 2011)
(Appointed on 12 July 2011)
(Appointed on 25 April 2011)

= N = NGO W

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a Sub-Committee of the Board. All members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the
Board of Directors among their members. They met 3 (three) times during the year 2011.

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui was appointed in place of Mr. Kamrul Hasan as Audit Committee Chairman w.e.f. 10th April
2011. All the members were present in all meetings of the Committee during their tenure. The Company Secretary or
his nominee acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee, prepares all minutes and documents for circulation and is
responsible to provide feedback on effective implementation of action plans arising from the meetings.

The Audit Committee comprises of:
Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui - Chairman
Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman - Member
Mr. Golam Mainuddin - Member

28
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Shareholdings

Names of the shareholders along with their position of the shares are listed below:

i) Parent/subsidiary/associate/related parties:

Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd. (BAT Group) 39,545,358 65.91%
ii) Directors/CEO/CS/CFO/Audit Head and their

spouses and minor children nil nil
iii) Executives (HOD) nil nil
iv) Shareholders, who hold 10% or more:

. Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 10,509,760 17.52%
v)  Other Shareholders, who hold less than 10%

. Sadharan Bima Corporation 1,694,047 2.82%

. Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 591,479 0.99%

. President People's Republic of Bangladesh 386,824 0.64%

. Sena Kallyan Sangstha 157,258 0.26%

. Others 7,115,274 11.86%
Total 60,000,000 100.00%
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Directors' Report

Annexure ll

Status of compliance with the Conditions Imposed
by the Securities & Exchange Commission's Notification
No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-06, dated 20 February 2006 (Report under condition No.5.00)

No.

30

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

l

: 11 Board's Size: Board Members should not be less than 5 (five) and

: more than 20 (twenty) Complied
: 1.2 (i) Independent Directors: At least 1/10t" Complied
3 1.2 (ii) Appointment of Independent Directors Complied
: 13 Individual Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive and clearly

| defined roles and responsibilities Complied
: 1.4 The Directors' Report to Shareholders on:

3 1.4 (a) Fairness of financial statements Complied
3 1.4 (b) Maintenance of proper books of accounts Complied
: 1.4 () Adoption of appropriate Accounting policies and estimates Complied
i 1.4 (d) Compliance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards Complied
: 1.4 (e) Soundness of internal control system Complied
3 1.4 (f) Ability to continue as going concern Complied
|

: 14 (g) Significant deviations from last year Complied
i 1.4 (h) Presentation of last three years data Complied
3 1.4 (i) Declaration of dividend Complied
: 1.4 (j) Details of Board Meeting attendance Complied
|

| 1.4 (k) Shareholding pattern Complied
3 2.1 Appointment of CFO, Head of Internal Audit & Company Secretary

| and defining of their respective roles, responsibilities and duties Complied
3 2.2 Attendance of CFO and Company Secretary at Board Meeting Complied
3 3.0 Audit Committee Complied
: 3.1(0) Constitution of Audit Committee Complied
3 3.1 (i) Constitution of Audit Committee with Board member including

| one independent Director Complied
|

: 3.1iii) Filling of casual vacancy in Audit Committee Not applicable
|

: 3.2(i) Chairman of Audit Committee Complied
: 3.2 (ii) Professional qualification and experience of the Chairman of

| Audit Committee Complied
|

|

|

|

|

|

|



Condition Title Compliance Status

No.
3.3.13) Reporting to Board of Directors Complied
3.3.1(ii) (a) | Reporting of conflict of interest to the Board of Directors Complied
3.3.1(ii) (b)| Reporting of any fraud or irregularity to the Board of Directors Not applicable
3.3.1(ii) (c) | Reporting of violation of laws to the Board of Directors Not applicable
3.3.1(ii) (d)| Reporting any other matter to the Board of Directors Complied
33.2 Reporting of qualified point of the Commission Not applicable
3.4 Reporting of activities to the Shareholders and General Investors Not applicable
4.00 External/Statutory Auditors Complied
4.00 (i) Non-engagement in Appraisal or Valuation Services Complied
4.00 (i) Non-engagement in designing of Financial Information System Complied
4.00 (iii) | Non-engagement in Book-Keeping Complied
4.00 (iv) | Non-engagement in Broker-Dealer Services Complied
4.00 (v) | Non-engagement in Actuarial Services Complied
4.00 (vi) | Non-engagement in Internal Audit Services Complied
4.00 (vii) | Non-engagement in any other services Complied
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AUDITORS' REPORT 10 THE SHAREHOLDERS

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and
other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial !
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of :
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we |
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order |
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion [
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of !
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating !
the overall presentation of the financial statements. :
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS),
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of the results of its
operations and cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it
appeared from our examination of these books;

c) the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in
agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business.

U @J‘mg;%

Auditors
Dhaka, 1March 2012
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Financial Statements

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes Taka '000 Taka '000
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 4 5,376,634 5,315,562
Current assets:
Inventories 5 5,373,033 4,366,664
Trade and other receivables 6 926,842 488,053
Advance, deposit and prepayments 7 3,907,087 1,855,301
Cash and cash equivalents 8 837,393 1,343,853
11,044,355 8,053,871
Total assets 16,420,989 13,369,433
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's equity:
Share capital 9 600,000 600,000
Capital reserve 10 64,896 64,896
5,246,404 5,575,813
5,911,300 6,240,709
Non-current liabilities:
Deferred liability (gratuity) 12 252,089 252,430
Deferred tax liability 13 669,079 517,989
Obligation under finance lease 14 17,876 34,901
939,044 805,320
Current liabilities
Provision for expenses and taxes 15 1,838,021 1,596,984
Trade and other payables 16 3,437,758 2,643,529
Provision for corporate tax 4,294,866 2,082,891
9,570,645 6,323,404
Total equity and liabilities 16,420,989 13,369,433

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ludod = ==

Arun Kaul Anthony Yong
Managing Director Director

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, 1March 2012
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Md. Azizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Auditors




British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2011

Gross turnover
Duties and VAT
Net turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit

Net finance (expenses)/income

Workers' profit participation fund
Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (par value Tk 10 each)

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

b ==

Arun Kaul
Managing Director

Dhaka, 1March 2012

Anthony Yong

Notes

18

19

20.1
20.2

21

As per our report of same date

2011 2010
Taka'000 Taka'000
75,357,351 65,986,503
52,088,490 45,040,463
23,268,861 20,946,040
13,455,535 13,475,693
9,813,326 7,470,347
4,530,369 3,145,629
5,282,957 4,324,718
(110,687) (16,145)
5,172,270 4,308,573
258,614 215,429
4,913,656 4,093,144
2,211,975 1,057,913
151,090 156,642
2,363,065 1,214,555
2,550,591 2,878,589
2,550,591 2,878,589
Taka Taka
42.51 47.98

Md. Azizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Auditors

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED



Financial Statements

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2011

Share Capital Revenue
capital reserve reserve Total

Taka '000 Taka '000 Taka '000 Taka '000

Balance as at 1 January 2010 600,000 64,896 4,497,224 5,162,120
Dividend paid - - (1,800,000) (1,800,000)
Profit for the year 2010 - - 2,878,589 2,878,589
Balance as at 31 December 2010 600,000 64,896 5,575,813 6,240,709
Dividend paid - - (2,880,000) (2,880,000)
Profit for the year 2011 - - 2,550,591 2,550,591
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:

Collection from distributors, leaf export and others
Payment for costs and expenses
Supplementary duty and VAT paid

Cash generated from operation

Income tax paid
Interest (expense)/income

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Finance lease obligation

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 8)

2011 2010

Taka '000 Taka'000
74,997,437 66,002,772
(17,841,598) (17,419,639)
(52,099,969) (44,344,487)
5,055,870 4,238,652
(1,880,970) (1,010,156)
(110,687) (16,145)
3,064,213 3,212,351
(707,823) (2,109,202)
27,686 24,561
(680,137) (2,084,641)
(17,085) 12,231
(2,873,451) (1,796,253)
(2,890,536) (1,784,022)
(506,460) (656,312)
1,343,853 2,000,165
837,393 1,343,853

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

3.1

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended
31 December 2011

Reporting Entity

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company incorporated in
Bangladesh and its shares are quoted in the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. The address of the Company's
registered office is New DOHS Road, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, Bangladesh.

The Company manufactures and markets both international and local brands like Benson & Hedges, John Player Gold
Leaf, Pall Mall, Capstan, Star, Scissors, Bristol, Pilot and Hollywood.

The Company has its Head Office and the cigarette factory in Dhaka, a green leaf threshing plant in Kushtia, a green
leaf redrying plant in Manikganj and a number of leaf and sales offices throughout the country.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS),
the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh. Cash flows
from operating activities are computed under direct method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 1March 2012.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are prepared in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk.) which is the Company's functional currency.
All financial information presented in Taka has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with BFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Comparative information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2010 for all numerical information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current
year's financial statements.

Figures for the year 2010 have been rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to ensure better comparability with
the current year.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies at exchange rate at the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
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to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured E
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

3.2 Reporting currency

The financial statements are expressed in Taka currency unless otherwise indicated.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

3.3.1 Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumlated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment under construction are stated at cost. Fully depreciated assets except plant and
machinery are carried in the books at one percent of their original cost. Fully depreciated plant and machinery are
carried in the books at one Taka.

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised as gain or loss.

3.3.2 Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its

cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

3.3.3 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted
for cost less its residual value.

based on the month of acquisition. Land is not depreciated. The depreciation is calculated according to the useful
life applicable to different categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful life in years

Freehold building 40
Leasehold building 22
Plant and machinery 5/14
Laboratory equipment 14
Office equipment 3/4/10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Air conditioners 4
Vehicles 4

3.4 Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

3.5 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
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Depreciation is recognised in statement of comprehensive income on the straight-line method with a pro-rata charge :
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completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sales. [
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3.6 Impairment

The carrying amount of non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated and impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.7 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given in return.
After initial recognition these are carried at cost less impairment losses due to uncollectibility of any amount so
recognised.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash with bank including fixed deposits having maturity of three
months or less and short term credit arrangements which are held and available for use by the Company without any
restriction.

3.9 Retirement benefit schemes

The Company operates one funded and one unfunded gratuity scheme. Provisions in respect of which are made
annually covering all its eligible employees other than the expatriates. There are also recognised provident funds for
all employees and a pension fund for the eligible management staffs. Actuarial valuation of the gratuity and pension
schemes are also made to assess the adequacy of the liabilities provided for the schemes as per "BAS 19: Employee
Benefits".

3.10 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can reliably be estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

3.1 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

3.11.1 Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The Company
qualifies as a "Publicly Traded Cigarette Manufacturing Company"; hence, the applicable tax rate is 35%. In 2010, the
applicable tax rate was 27.50%. The Company also used to enjoy 10% tax rebate on income tax payable so calculated
for declaring dividend more than 20% of paid up capital till last year.

3.11.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in accordance with BAS 12: Income taxes, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against

which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and amount of revenue can be measuredreliably.
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Gross turnover comprises domestic sales of cigarettes, export of leaf and includes supplementary duty, export duty and
value added tax paid to the Government of Bangladesh.

3.13 Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

The Company provides 5% of its profit before charging such expense as WPPF in accordance with the Bangladesh Labour
Act 2006.

3.14 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.

3.14.1 Basic earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

3.15 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company's position at the date of
statement of financial position are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes whenmaterial.
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5. Inventories

Leaf

Wrapping materials
Work in process
Finished goods

Consumable stores

6. Trade and other receivables

Letter of credit
Trade debtors
Sundry debtors

Agricultural inputs

These are all unsecured and considered good as such no provision was
considered against these debtors.

7. Advance, deposit and prepayments

Supplementary duty and VAT
Prepaid expenses

Advance income tax

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Cash at banks:
Dividend accounts
Foreign currency accounts
current accounts

Fixed deposits

financial position.
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2011

Taka'000

3,609,519
303,733
17,425
1,191,155
251,201

5,373,033

44,613
412,020
20,663
449,546
926,842

68,355
521,809
3,316,923

3,907,087

3,372

24,577
424,049
385,395

837,393

2010
Taka'000

3,080,560
256,142
12,434
853,528
164,000

4,366,664

66,230
52,105
13,102
356,616
488,053

419,348
1,435,953

1,855,301

3,428

18,028
62,382
610,015
650,000

1,343,853

Foreign currency account balances have been converted to Taka at the rate ruling at the date of statement of



9. Share capital

Authorised:
60,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 600,000,000 600,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up:

Issued for cash -

3 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 30 30
Issued for consideration other than cash -
59,999,997 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 599,999,970 599,999,970

600,000,000 600,000,000

The composition of shareholders as at 31 December was:

2011 2010
Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd., UK 65.91% 65.91%
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 17.52% 17.41%
Sadharan Bima Corporation 2.82% 2.82%
Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 0.99% 0.99%
Government of Bangladesh 0.64% 0.64%
Sena Kallyan Sangstha 0.26% 0.26%
Others 11.86% 11.97%

100.00% 100.00%

A distribution schedule of the shares as at 31December 2011is given below as required by listing regulations:

No. of Total no. of Total

Holdings holders shares holdings
Less than 500 shares 3956 326,813 0.545%
500 to 5,000 shares 460 585,002 0.975%
5,001 to 10,000 shares 48 347,183 0.579%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 24 346,693 0.578%
20,001 to 30,000 shares 12 304,652 0.508%
30,001 to 40,000 shares 8 272,745 0.455%
40,001 to 50,000 shares n 498,584 0.831%
50,001 to 100,000 shares 12 830,700 1.385%
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 9 3,557,077 5.928%
Over 1,000,000 shares 7 52,930,551 88.218%

Total 4,547 60,000,000 100.000%
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10. Capital reserve

1. Revenue reserve
Opening balance

Less: Dividend paid

Closing balance

12. Deferred liability (gratuity)

employees retire on the reporting date.

13. Deferred tax liability

Opening balance
Add : Addition/(deduction) during the year

Closing balance

14. Obligation under finance lease

Due within one year
Due after one year but within five years
Due after five years

Total obligation under finance lease
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Add: Net profit transferred from statement of comprehensive income

Repayment of Finance lease obligation is classified as below:

This represents total liability of the Company on account of gratuity that would be payable if all eligible

Capital reserve represents non-remittable reserve of Tk 64,896 thousand which is 90% of the cumulative post tax
profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment as defined and directed by Bangladesh Bank. The requirement to
create such special reserve on profit from sale of property, plant and equipment has been withdrawn since 1993.

2011 2010

Taka '000 Taka '000

5,575,813 4,497,224

2,880,000 1,800,000

2,695,813 2,697,224

2,550,591 2,878,589

5,246,404 5,575,813

517,989 361,347

151,090 156,642

669,079 517,989

2011 2010

Principal Interest Total Principal

Taka '000 Taka '000 Taka'000 Taka'000
17,025 3,450 20,475 17,085
17,876 1,977 19,853 34,901
34,901 5,427 40,328 51,986




15.

16.

17.

18.

2011 2010
Provision for expenses and taxes
Departmental provisions 626,178 596,289
VAT & duty related provisions 1,122,308 936,470
Other provisions 89,535 64,225
1,838,021 1,596,984
Trade & other payables
Supplementary duty and VAT = 477,283
Trade creditors 992,696 695,809
Provident/pension funds - 819
Workers' profit participation fund 6,460 215,429
Wages and other benefits 303,378 283,689
Unclaimed dividend 24,577 18,028
Intercompany payable 1,953,824 798,716
Sundry creditors 156,823 153,756
Net turnover
2011 2010
Unit Qty Taka '000 Taka '000
Gross Turnover Million sticks 26,493 72,416,319 63,279,391
Supplementary duty & VAT (51,802,918) (44,836,501)
20,613,401 18,442,890
Turnover from leaf tobacco export Kg 12,044,580 2,941,032 2,707,112
Export duty (285,572) (203,962)
2,655,460 2,503,150
23,268,861 20,946,040
Cost of sales
2011 2010
Taka '000 Taka '000
Raw materials consumed 11,200,695 11,297,807
Production overhead (Note 19) 2,254,840 2,177,886
13,455,535 13,475,693
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Current tax includes adjustment for previous year's tax liabilities resulting from change in the applicable corporate
tax rate announced in the National Budget 2011-12.

20.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax provision has accordingly changed due to increase in applicable tax rate from 24.75% to 35% as per
National Budget 2011-12.
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: 2011 2010
} Taka '000 Taka '000
| 19. Operating expenses

|

: Salaries and wages 1,093,197 1,068,836
[ Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 108,384 108,961
: Staff welfare 129,946 110,714
: Brand marketing expenditure 701,366 446,526
[ Trade marketing expenditure 1,320,940 691,390
| Utilities 186,135 204,015
‘ Rent, rates, services and taxes 159,635 136,315
| Repairs and maintenance 516,972 459,555
: Travelling and training 117,652 164,534
[ Vehicle running expenses 59,935 47177
: Legal and Secretarial 12,076 7,844
: Information Technology 139,468 85,154
| Office and administrative expenses 75,971 109,141
} Social responsibility 90,574 11,112
! Security and safety 31,431 24,736
: Market information 199,698 163,772
: Distribution expenses 67,458 58,723
[ Freight and handling 156,738 112,874
: Insurance 47,325 41,046
: Depreciation 542,619 510,667
| Technical assistance fees 790,362 504,706
: Auditors' remuneration:

! Audit fees 800 800
| Other fees 1,110 1,134
: Financial charges 1,642 24,914
| Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (14,331) (15,219)
} Other income (22,537) (30,111)
I Other expenses 260,643 174,199
: 6,785,209 5,323,515
: Less: Charged to production overhead 2,254,840 2,177,886
| 4,530,369 3,145,629
: ———
: 20. Income tax

|

: 20.1 Current Tax

|

: Provision for current year 1,773,681 1,057,913
: Adjustment related to earlier years 438,294 -
| 2,211,975 1,057,913
| _ &e 7 72
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|



20.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Total tax expense
Expected income tax using applicable tax rate

Previous year adjustment

Non deductible expenses

21. Earnings per share

21.1 Basic earnings per share

20M
%

48.09%

35.00%
8.92%
4.17%
48.09%

20M 2010
Taka'000s %
4,913,657
2,363,065 29.67%
1,719,780 24.75%
438,294 -
204,991 4.92%
2,363,065 29.67%

2010

Taka '000s
4,093,144

1,214,555

1,013,053

201,502

1,214,555

Basic earnings per share has been calculated taking a capital base of 60,000,000 ordinary share of Tk. 10 each as

issued up to 31 December 2011.

21.2 Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the

year.

22. Number of employees

The Company had 1,146 permanent employees as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 1,186) and a varying number of seasonal

and temporary workers as required. All permanent employees receive total remuneration in excess of Tk 36,000 per

annum per employee.

23. Remuneration of directors

Fees

Remuneration

Retirement benefit scheme
Medical and welfare

Housing

24. Remittances of foreign currency

Royalty
Technical assistance fees

Dividend

Above remittances were made after deduction of applicable tax.

2011

Taka'000

378
36,176
2,974
490
6,575
46,593

2011

UsD '000

22,957
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2010

Taka'000

468
24,912
1,646
376
6,126
33,528

2010

usD '000

2,760
6,671
15,416
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25. Capacity utilisation
The company works on continuous operation basis and given the current installed machine configuration, there is
sufficient capacity to meet forecast future demand in a variety of specification (e.g. Filter) and packaging (e.g.
Hinge Lid, Soft Cup, Shell and Slide) configuration. The directors regularly review production capability of the
company and are satisfied that the current capacity is adequate.
Actual production 2011 2010
Cigarettes (in million sticks) 26,435 26,568
2011 2010
UsD '000 uUsD '000
26. Value of export earnings received 39,507 38,791
27. Contingent liabilities
There are contingent liabilities in respect of certain legal and tax claims made against the Company. However, these
are being vigorously defended by the Company and the directors do not consider it is appropriate to make provision
in respect of any of these claims.
28. Related party transactions
During the year, the company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of
business and on an arm's length basis. Names of related parties, nature of transactions and their total value and year
end balance have been set out below:
Balance as at
. . . 31st December
Related parties Nature of relationship Nature of Amount of
transaction 201
transaction Receivable/
Taka '000 (Payable)
Taka'000
British American Tobacco, UK | Holding company T&A Fees & others 1,232,028 (1,881,236)
BASS GSD UK BAT Group company | Regional initiatives & shared service 157,765 (13,601)
BAT Malaysia BAT Group company Import of raw materials & others 3,012 -
Pakistan Tobacco Company BAT Group company Export of Leaf & others 303,326 60,422
BAT Singapore BAT Group company Import of raw materials & others 76,467 (9,228)
BAT ASPAC Service Malaysia | BAT Group company | Regional initiatives & shared service 74,096 (40,365)
BAT ASPAC Service Hong Kong| BAT Group company | Regional initiatives & shared service 36,296 (9,394)
BAT (GLP) Limited BAT Group company Export of Leaf & others 5,315,635 2,91
Other BAT Group companies | BAT Group company Import of raw materials & others 4,868 1,213
29. Financial Risk Management

The company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk). The company's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a risk management committee under policies & procedure approved by the audit
committee. The committee identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the company's treasury
function. Treasury function is governed by the treasury committee, headed by the Finance Director and operates
within the requirements of an approved treasury policy.
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29.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by
failing to discharge a contractual obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from trade debtors, advances and prepayments
and cash at bank. Treasury guidelines are followed for managing cash and cash equivalents while short term
investment decisions are taken after proper review by treasury committee ensuring compliance with treasury
guidelines. The company operates almost on a 100% cash sales modality while credits for maximum 3 days are given
to selected distributors during extended bank holidays after taking proper approval from Finance & Marketing
functions. As a security for the credit given, cheques for equivalent amount of credit are collected from the
customers and kept under the custody of the company. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date in
terms of carrying value of assets are as follows:

2011 2010
Taka'000 Taka'000
Receivables from trade debtors (note 6) 412,020 52,105
Receivables from sundry debtors (note 6) 20,663 13,102
Agricultural input adjustment (note 6) 449,546 356,616
882,229 421,823
Cash at banks 834,021 1,340,425
1,716,250 1,762,248

The aging of receivables as at 31 December was:
0-30 days 875,968 393,173
31-60 days 4,897 22,572
61-90 days 1,864 2,335
91-180 days 2,786 1,822
181-365 days (6,345) 250
Over 365 days 3,059 1,671
882,229 421,823

29.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to honour its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company's management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position, expressed in cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow and ensures access to short term credit as per credit limit approved
by the board whenever needed in order to meet the high working capital funding requirements and implements
investment decisions. As at 31 December 2011, the Company's entire borrowing facility remained unutilised and also
the Company had Tk 0.83 billion cash and bank balances. Considering the foregoing and also the fact that the Company
was in a positive working capital position as at the year end, management considers the liquidity risk to be low.

Relevant non-derivative financial liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

2011 2010

Taka '000 Taka '000

Supplementary duty and VAT (note 16) D W
Trade creditors (note 16) 992,696 695,809
Unclaimed dividend (note 16) 24,577 18,028
Intercompany payable (note 16) 1,953,824 798,716
Sundry creditors (note 16) 156,823 153,756
3,127,920 2,143,592

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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The aging of relevant non-derivative financial liabilities:

0-30 days 1,563,850 1,160,332
31-60 days 199,013 256,373
61-90 days 130,242 20,522
91-180 days 809,526 136,027
181-365 days 165,502 435,595
over 365 days 259,787 134,743

3,127,920 2,143,592

Fair value estimation
The carrying values of applicable financial instruments represent their fair values.
29.3 MarketRisk
a) Currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US
dollar, EURO, and the British Pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from future settlement of recognised assets and liabilities.

Management complies with the treasury policy to manage foreign exchange risk against their functional currency.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows on the reporting dates:

Exposure to currency risk

As at 31 December 2011 As at 31 December 2010
‘000 BDT ‘000 BDT
EUR GBP usD EUR GBP usD
Foreign currency denominated assets
Receivable from related parties - - 66,225 - 23,853 86,156
Accounts receivable 266 687 | 152,788 - 41| 42,549
Cash at bank 446 62 | 424,770 244 - 62,855
712 849 643,783 244 23,894 191,560
Foreign currency denominated liabilities
Payable to related parties - 13,601 1,271,652 1,680 554,162 16,831
Trade and other payable for expenses - 17,478 54,773 - 4,166 55,772
- 31,079 1,326,425 1,680 558,328 72,603
Net exposure 712 (30,230) (682,642) (1,436) | (534,434) 118,957

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year:
Exchange rate as at

31Dec 201 31Dec 2010
Taka Taka
US Dollar (USD) 81.83 70.48
Great Britain Pound (GBP) 12717 110.34
Euro (EUR) 106.23 94.55

The Company considers 10% strengthening or weakening of the functional currency against non-functional currencies as a
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30.

31.

reasonably possible change. The impact is calculated with reference to the financial asset or liability held as at the year
end. A 10% increase or decrease of functional currency against non-functional currencies would not result in signifi-
cant changes in the Company’s pre-tax profit.

b) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial statement will fluctuate because of a
change in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

The Company is not exposed to equity price risk since there are no investments in equity securities. The Company is
also not directly exposed to commodity price risk.

c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no long term interest bearing assets or liabilities, the Company's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market interest rate.

20M 2010
Taka'000 Taka'000
Capital expenditure commitments
Contracted but not provided for in these financial statements 129,742 152,551
Consumption of imported and local raw materials
20M 2010
Wrapping Wrapping
materials Leaf materials Leaf
Taka'000 Taka'000 Taka '000 Taka '000
Imported:
Opening stock 232,197 341,942 309,778 400,162
Purchases 1,569,245 1,466,222 1,379,979 1,380,100
Consumption (1,536,594) (1,358,932) (1,457,560) (1,438,320)
Closing stock (a) 264,848 449,232 232,197 341,942
Domestic:
Opening stock 23,945 2,738,619 45,550 2,250,121
Purchases 2,706,591 6,302,718 2,703,163 6,157,806
Consumption (2,691,651) (3,225,590) (2,724,768) (3,552,757)
Export - (2,655,460) - (2,16,551)
Closing stock (b) 38,885 3,160,287 23,945 2,738,619
Closing stock (a+b) 303,733 3,609,519 256,142 3,080,561

As the Company deals in large number of items which vary in units, item-wise quantity statement of raw materials
could not be given.
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32. Sale/adjustment of property, plant and equipment

Meeting of the Company.

(Buultond

Arun Kaul
Managing Director
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33. Events after balance sheet date

—SK=

Anthony Yong
Director

Original Accumulated
cost depreciation  Book value Sale value Mode of
Taka '000 Taka '000 Taka '000 Taka '000 disposal/adjustment  Purchaser
Leasehold building 15,038 6,901 8,137 - As per company policy
Freehold building 1,684 256 1,428 - do
Plant and Machinery 7,617 7,214 403 - do
Laboratory equipment 351 215 136 - do
Office Equipment 43,304 41,256 2,048 493 do Third party
Furniture and fixtures 2,318 1,717 601 4 do Third party
Air conditioners 4,281 4,178 103 7 do Third party
Vehicles 49,914 49,415 499 27,182 do Employees of
the Company
20M 124,507 111,152 13,355 27,686
2010 143,615 134,273 9,342 24,561

For the year 2011, an interim cash dividend of 50% i.e. TK. 5 per share amounting to Tk. 300,000,000 was paid in
November 2011. The Board of Directors recommended a final cash dividend of 370% i.e. Tk. 37 per share amounting to
Tk. 2,220,000,000 at the board meeting held on 1March, 2012. As aresult, total 420% cash dividend for the year 2011,
inclusive of 50% interim cash dividend, is recommended by the Board of Directors for approval in 39th Annual General

Md. Azizur Rahman
Company Secretary



Probaho

Bringing smiles to 87,500 people everyday.

BAT Bangladesh’s CSR initiative ‘Probaho’ is providing rural people with safe
drinking water in arsenic prone areas. Through 34 community based water
filtration plants, ‘Probaho’ is ensuring 175,000 litres of safe drinking water free
from arsenic and other impurities in different parts of the country everyday.

Partnering with communities. BRITISH AMERICAN
Enabling progress. ToBACCO
BANGLADESH
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system of British American Tobacco Bangladesh is designed to manage risks that may impede the
achievement of the Company's business objectives rather than eliminating these risks. The ultimate owner of the
internal control system is the Board of Directors as it ensures that the importance of internal controls is understood
across the Company and that adequate resource allocations are available. Internal Control is the process by which the
Company's directors, management and staff obtain reasonable assurance as to the achievement of specified
objectives including:-

® Efficiency and effectiveness of operations,

® Safeguarding of assets,

® Reliability of financial and other management information,

® The prevention of fraud,

® Compliance with relevant national laws and company regulations.

British American Tobacco Bangladesh continues to ensure the presence of the following components that would
create an effective internal control system:

Control Environment

The Board of Directors sets the tone for an effective control environment through regular reviews of the processes
for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks. The Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) are signed
off by each individual each year to provide assurance that these standards are communicated understood and
complied with. As part of the SoBC, a whistle blowing process is in place that facilitates confidential reporting of any
concerns. An effective Control environment is set by top management that cascades across all business functions.
Every year the top team conducts a self assessment of key controls that affects the business and draws up action plans
to make the internal control environment more robust.

Risk Assessment

The Company has an ongoing risk management process to identify key business risks and ensure that mitigation plans
are in place. Process risks are also assessed at the planning stages whereby objectives are reviewed along with the
associated risks that may potentially affect the achievement of these objectives. Appropriate risk responses are
articulated to enable the Company to achieve its objectives effectively.

Control Activities

Control activities are the policies and procedures that help ensure that management directives are carried out, and
that the necessary actions are taken to minimise the risks of failing to meet objectives. Policies and procedures are
effectively established within the Company and continuously reviewed for compliance, adequacy and improvement.

Information and Communication

The Company ensures the effective flow of information on internal activities and external factors across the
management levels. All individuals receive a clear message from senior management that control responsibilities must
be taken seriously.

Monitoring

The system of internal control is monitored regularly through both ongoing activities and separate evaluations.
Ongoing monitoring activities are conducted through regular management activities. The Internal Audit function is
responsible for providing an objective and independent view of the effectiveness of operational and financial controls
and procedures, as well as management action in dealing with issues of control. The Internal Audit function monitors
the presence of the components of internal control system and reports to the Audit Committee.

Development of awareness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, ensures that an awareness of internal control is enhanced throughout the
company. This occurs through management self assessment of controls, discussion of internal control issues at
management meetings, off the job education on internal control and through creating an environment and control
attitude within the company that is challenging, proactive, and considers the worst case scenarios to gauge the
appropriateness of controls.

The Board has delegated the process of reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee, whose functions are described in the Audit Committee Report, met three times during 2011. The
Committee monitored the presence of the control environment and reviewed independent assessments of business
processes within the Company.
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Probaho

Bringing smiles to 87,500 people everyday.

BAT Bangladesh’s CSR initiative ‘Probaho’ is providing rural people with safe
drinking water in arsenic prone areas. Through 34 community based water
filtration plants, ‘Probaho’ is ensuring 175,000 litres of safe drinking water free
from arsenic and other impurities in different parts of the country everyday.

Partnering with communities. BRITISH AMERICAN
Enabling progress. ToBACCO
BANGLADESH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of BAT Bangladesh is a
sub-committee of the Board of Directors and is
appointed and authorised by the Board to review the
activities of the business. The role of the Audit Commit-
tee is to monitor the integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and review and, when appropriate, make
recommendations to the Main Board on business risks,
internal controls, governance issues and compliance. The
committee satisfies itself by means of suitable steps and
appropriate information, that proper and satisfactory
internal control systems are in place to identify and
contain business risks and that the Company’s business is
conducted in a proper and prudent manner.

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, two
of whom are Non-Executive Directors and one is a
Non-Executive and Independent Director. The Directors
for 2011 were:

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui

Chairman, Audit Committee

Non-Executive Independent Director

(Appointed in place of Mr. Kamrul Hasan as AC Chairman)

Mr. Fayekuzzaman
Member, Audit Committee
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Member, Audit Committee
Non- Executive Director

The Committee met 3 (three) times during 2011. Invitees
to the meeting are the Managing Director, Finance Direc-
tor, Head of Audit and senior partner of the External
Auditors, who have regularly attended all the meetings of
the year. The Company Secretary or his nominee acts as
the Secretary to the Audit Committee, prepares all
minutes and documents for circulation and is responsible
to provide feedback on effective implementation of
action plans arising from the meetings.

Responsibilities and Objectives

The operating procedure of the Audit Committee is
governed by a Terms of Reference which is reviewed by
the Committee and ratified by the Board. The major
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

® Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and any formal announcements relating
to the Company’s performance, reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them
before their submission to the Main Board for approval.

® Review the effectiveness of the accounting, internal
control and business risk systems of the Company.

® Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

e Consider and discuss with the external auditors of the
Company the scope of their audit prior to its commence
ment and, subsequently, the results, and review the
effectiveness of the process, taking into consideration
relevant professional and regulatory requirements;
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Activities of the Audit Committee

Intheyear2011, the Audit Committee carried out the following
activities:

Reviewed the financial statements and related schedules
to ensure that these reflect a true and fair view of the
company’s state of affairs for the year 2010

Approved the Internal Audit Plan and reviewed all
independent assessments carried out by the internal
audit function.

Reviewed the Risk Management process adopted by
the Company and the major risks facing the business
along with related mitigation plans.

Reviewed and approved the external auditor’s Strategy
Memorandum, i.e. the scope of their work, reporting
schedule and the resources for the audit.

Reviewed all management findings from the External
Audit and the effectiveness evaluation of the services
of the External Audit.

Reviewed the Audit Committee Terms of Reference.

Reviewed the management self-assessment of the key
controls of the business and the action plans put forward
to address any issues.

Reviewed the Confirmation Statement on the Standard
of Internal Control and the Standards of Business Conduct
signed by the Managing Director and Finance Director.

Reviewed issues within the following areas. However
no such occurrences were reported to the Board of
Directors.

« Report on conflicts of interests;

« Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or
material defect in the internal control system;

« Suspected infringement of laws, including securities

related laws, rules and regulations.



Corporate Governance has been defined as the system,
by which companies are directed, controlled and the
Board is accountable for it to the shareholders. It is
imperative for the Company to maximize the
shareholder's value and wealth. Though disclosure of
Corporate Governance is not mandatory in Bangladesh,
British American Tobacco Bangladesh practices it so that
investors can place their full confidence in the Company.

Corporate Governance is a blend of law, regulation,
enforcement and appropriate voluntary practices by
companies that permit a company to attract capital,
perform efficiently and generate long-term economic
value for its shareholders, while respecting the interests
of its stakeholders and society as a whole. The principal
characteristics of effective corporate governance are:

® Protection of the rights of minority shareholders.

® Transparency (including disclosure of relevant reliable
financial and operational information, information on
ownership and control; and information on the
internal processes of management).

® Responsible directors capable of independently
evaluating and approving the joint stock company’s
strategy, business plans and decisions, independently
hiring, monitoring and, when necessary, replacing
management and auditors.

The statement outlines main Corporate Governance
practices in British American Tobacco Bangladesh
Company Limited under the following headings:

Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh and their roles
Relationship with Shareholders

Accountability and Audit

Compliance with Legal Requirements

Employees

Standards of Business Conduct

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh
and their roles

A Code of Corporate Governance has been produced as
an outline framework for Directors to the Board of British
American Tobacco Bangladesh. Additionally, it describes
their roles and responsibilities and suggests a process for
their continued development to assist in ensuring that
they will make an effective and ongoing contribution to
our business.

The Company fully supports establishment of formal
Code and is committed to ensure that structures and
processes are used to direct and manage the business
towards enhancing business prosperity and corporate
accountability with the ultimate objective of realising
long term shareholder value, whilst taking into account
the interests of other

stakeholders.

The Code on Corporate Governance of the Company sets
out the principles and best practices to be applied by the
Company in its operations towards achieving the optimal
governance framework.

The Board of Directors is responsible for protecting the
rights and interests of all shareholders and also account-
able for the overall management of the entity. Besides its
usual legal and statutory responsibilities, the Board is
responsible for the following:

® Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company;

® Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to
evaluate whether the business is being properly managed;

® |dentifying principal risks and ensuring the implemen
tation of appropriate systems to manage these risks;

® Succession planning, including appointing, training,
fixing the compensation of and where appropriate,
replacing senior management;

® Developing and implementing an investor relations
programme or shareholder communications policy for
the Company;

® Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the
Company'’s internal control systems and management
information systems, including systems for compli
ance with applicable laws, regulations, rules,
directives and guidelines;

® Approving the financial statements and accounting
policies of the Company;

® Declaring dividends;

® Establishing committees including the Audit Commit
tee and the Compensation Committee and determin
ing the authorities to be delegated to committees of
the Board;

® Receiving and reviewing reports from committees of
the Board;

® Establishing and monitoring compliance with the
Company’s Standards of Business Conduct and other
policies of the Company;

® Establishing appropriate systems of corporate gover
nance in the Company;

® Considering and approving other matters specifically
reserved for the attention of the Board; and

® Constantly guide and assist the Company in external
Stakeholder Management.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Board Composition

The Board of the Company consists of nine Directors, comprising six Non-Executive Directors and three Executive
Directors which include the Managing Director, the Finance Director and CORA Director. All the Non-Executive
Directors provide a considerable depth of knowledge and experience collectively gained from a variety of private,
public and government organisations.

The Board met 6 (six) times during the year 2011 and took decisions on key matters. The Board is responsible for the
overall system of internal control for the Company and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.

Responsibilities for implementing the Company's strategy and day-to-day operations are delegated to the Executive
Committee, which meets monthly. The Executive Committee is chaired by the Managing Director. The other members
include the functional Heads of Legal & Secretarial, Marketing, Supply Chain, Finance, Human Resources, and Corporate
& Regulatory Affairs.

Board Committees

The Board Committees namely the Audit Committee and Board Compensation Committee, each within its own terms
of reference play an important role in executing the responsibility of the Board.

Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor the integrity and review the financial statements, and when
appropriate, make recommendations to the Board on business risks, internal controls and compliance. The Committee
satisfies itself, by means of suitable steps and appropriate information, that proper and satisfactory internal control
systems are in place to identify and contain business risks and that the Company's business is conducted in a proper
and economically sound manner.

The Audit Committee comprises of three members which includes three Non-Executive Directors (of which one is an
Independent Director) of the Company. The Audit Committee Chairman is a Non-Executive Independent Director. The
Committee reviews the work done by the internal and external auditors to assess the effectiveness of internal
controls, management of business risks and other matters raised in regular reports to the Committee. The Audit
Committee met 3 (three) times in 2011.

Board Compensation Committee

The Board Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of the members
of the Executive Committee, managers and employees and decides their specific remuneration. This Committee met 2
(two) times in 2011, and is headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members include the Managing Director and
the Finance Director. The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary of the committee. The remuneration
policy is designed to ensure that reward and remuneration package is competitive so that high quality human resource
with proven business experience can be recruited, motivated and retained.

Relationship with Shareholders

Good Corporate Governance encourages dialogue with shareholders and the Annual General Meeting encourages
participation of shareholders. The Company continues to have regular communication with shareholders through
half-yearly updates of performance and at any other time when it believes it to be in the best interests of shareholders
generally.

Accountability and Audit

The Board reviews in detail the contents of the annual consolidated Financial Statements and Directors' Report in
order to satisfy itself that the presentation is balanced and that the Company's position is communicated clearly to
the shareholders. The Board of Directors considers, in conjunction with the external Auditor, the accounting policies
adopted in the Accounts and examines internal control which has been put in place in the Company.

Compliance with Legal Requirements

The Board through the Legal & Secretarial function makes every endeavour to ensure that the business of the
Company complies with the laws and regulations of Bangladesh. Additionally, necessary controls are in place to ensure
that the policies of the Board are complied with.
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The Board of Directors requires that in all possible aspects, the Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with
the Bangladesh Accounting Standards and requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission. Maximum possible
information is provided to shareholders and full disclosure is made subject only to any sensitive information which
could directly impact the business of the Company.

Employees

British American Tobacco Bangladesh actively encourages employee involvement in the Company's business via
publications, team briefings and regular meetings with employee representatives. The Company's employment policy
includes commitments to recruit people on the basis of their ability and to equal opportunities.

Standards of Business Conduct

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited is committed to achieving high standards of integrity in public
life and in all of its business practices. This commitment is set out in the Standards of Business Conduct adopted by
the Company in order to conduct the Company’s business with honesty, integrity and transparency. It is critical to the
continuing development of a business that is responsible, successful and sustainable in the long term.

Standards of Business Conduct are a fundamental policy of the Company that everyone working for British American
Tobacco Bangladesh must follow, whilst also providing support and guidance to assist the people to ensure that their
conduct meets the high standards expected of them and comply with the laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s business and that they act with high standards of business integrity. The Standards are an integral part of
the principles of corporate governance in British American Tobacco Bangladesh and are designed to:

® Ensure that decisions and judgments made by the employees are lawful and comply with the ethical
standards expected of a leading public company;

® Set a tone and culture for the organisation which will enable it to be regarded as a good corporate
citizen;

® Help employees who are faced with making relevant judgments in the course of doing their work;

® Assist managers in considering disciplinary matters where appropriate, give reassurance to British
American Tobacco Bangladesh’s shareholders, customers and suppliers, to Government and to other
third parties with whom British American Tobacco Bangladesh comes into business contact; and

® Seek to protect British American Tobacco Bangladesh from being subject to loss as a consequence
of extortion, fraud, theft, bribery and corruption, insider dealing and market abuse, Competition
and anti trust law, and money laundering and anti-terrorism or other dishonesty.

The Standards of Business Conduct are reviewed from time to time and updated to reflect what we see as develop-
ments and issues affecting corporate conduct and values, and the standards expected.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
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71.5 million
seeds of success

In 1980, Mr. Abul Kashem started his
mango orchard in Meherpur's Jhauria
village with 140 free saplings from
British American Tobacco Bangladesh.
Today, his endeavour has grown into a
sprawling 16 bigha mango orchard,
supporting his family financially aside
from environmental benefits.

There are thousands such stories of
self-motivated individuals who have
planted and cared for the 71.5 million
saplings we have provided free of cost
over the last 32 years. Their success
inspire us to continue our journey
towards a greener Bangladesh.

Partnering with communities. | BriTISH AMERICAN

Enabling progress. TOBACCO
BANGLADESH
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JANUARY

Mr. Richard Burrows, Chairman
of BAT Group, visited BAT
Bangladesh in January 2011.

Recognising World Water Day,

BAT Bangladesh launched 5 new
water treatment plants in Kushtia and
Manikganj on 22 March 2011.

‘Circle’, arenovated food canteen for all
employees, was inaugurated in April 2011.

The 38th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of BAT
Bangladesh was held on 10 April 2011 where a
dividend of Tk. 43 per share was approved for the
year 2010.
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MAY

The Dhaincha Seed
Distribution Programme 2011
kicked off from Allardarga
Leaf Region.

JUNE

iuﬂ Wil ¥
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Sapling Dagyys
Nationwide Afforestation A buon 3
Campaign launched in Dhaka

on June 22 marking 31years

of the Afforestation journey.

BAT Bangladesh won 15 first
prizes in different tree fair
competitions in June 2011.

£

YT IO & F1oPI

7,000 people planted 200,000 trees in BRISTOL 57y, the first ever LEPP in the Low
76 locations in the coastal area of the Segment of Bangladesh, was launched in July
country within Thour in July 2011. 2011 from the house of Bristol.
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AUGUST

An annual iftar mahfil was organised
in the Head Office premises in August
2011.

SEPTEMBER

In September, MD'’s Trophy 2011, an
Intra BAT Bangladesh Football
Tournament, was held at Head Office
premises where 8 teams participated.

In October 2011, BAT Bangladesh partnered For the children of BAT Bangladesh'’s
with Economic Reporters’ Forum (ERF) to employees ‘Kids Carnival’ was organised at
recognise ‘Excellence in Economic Journalism’. Wonderland Park, Gulshan in October 2011.
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DECEMBER

Benson & Hedges launched
New Limited Edition Pack in
Bangladesh market in
December 2011.

B&H NOW

Family Day 2011 was organised
with much grandiose for the
entire BAT Bangladesh family in
December 2011.

An Art Exhibition titled ‘Song of our Motherland’, The grand finale of Battle of Minds 2011 was
jointly organised by BAT Bangladesh and Bengal held in December at the Radisson Water
Gallery of Fine Arts was inaugurated by the Garden Hotel, Dhaka.

Honourable Finance Minister of Bangladesh,
Mr. Abul Maal Abdul Muhith in December 2011.
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Corporate Social -7 %"
Responsibility

Partnering with communities.
Enabling progress.
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Our Corporate
Social Responsibility

We believe that Corporate Social Responsibility is vital in
ensuring that our business is sustainable for long-term
shareholder value. We also believe that the business has a
key role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary
sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental
protection and social progress.
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The economy of Bangladesh, like most of the developing
countries, is still predominantly agriculture based
(contribution of agriculture sector to GDP 23.50% and
manpower in agriculture 62%) for any sort of sustainable
development to take place, the farmer base will be
critically important. British American Tobacco Bangladesh
has a unique relationship with more than 34,000 tobacco
farmers in Bangladesh. Our relationship with these farmers
enables us to be very proactive in helping them to address
various economic, social, and environmental issues
associated with their lives and livelihood.

PROBAHO:

BAT Bangladesh launches 5 New Probaho
plants on World Water Day in 2011

Recognising World Water Day, BAT Bangladesh launched 5
new water treatment plants in Kushtia and Manikganj on 22
March 2011. The ceremony was held in different districts with
BAT's pledge to conserve water and to bring safe, clean water
to people all over the country.

So far, BAT Bangladesh’s Probaho initiative has installed 34
plants to remove arsenic and other intoxicants from ground-
water.

The United Nations General Assembly declared March 22 as
World Water Day to promote clean water. Observance of this
day began in 1993 and has grown significantly ever since.

The PROBAHO plants are located in Kushtia, Jhenidah,
Meherpur, Chuadanga, Kurigram, Lalmonirhat, Satkhira,
Tangail and Manikganj districts. These 34 plants provide
approximately 1,75,000 litres of pure drinking water for
around 87,500 people in one day.

To achieve the Millennium Development Goals 2015, regard-
ing sanitation and health issues; BAT Bangladesh has taken this
initiative to help communities to complement development
efforts made by Government. The objective to reach the
MDG is to provide safe water; which can make a significant
contribution to the good health of poor people.

To celebrate World Water Day, an internal interactive
campaign was held at BAT Bangladesh carrying alarming
messages about Arsenic contaminated water to create
maximum awareness among all employees.
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SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE
TOBACCO PRODUCTION (SRTP)

Environmental Approach

Alternate Fuel

Since 1980, BAT Bangladesh is exploring the alternate
source of wood fuel needed to cure tobacco in Bangla-
desh. Over the period, the Company successfully
replaced almost 100% of Flue Cured Variety (FCV) curing
at Kushtia by alternates e.g. Jute stick, dhaincha sticks,
paddy straw, industrial waste, sugarcane bagasse, rice
husk, other crop residues etc. It is important to mention
that 70% of FCV tobacco in Bangladesh is grown at
Kushtia.

About 30% of FCV is grown in Chittagong, Cox’s Bazar
and Chittagong Hill Tracts. Through our concerted effort
and with the growing interest of the farming community,
alternate fuel is increasingly becoming popular in
Chittagong leaf growing region as well. At present,
alternate sources (dhaincha sticks, paper briquettes,
other crop residues, etc) are being used as wood fuel
substitute. To meet the demand for wood fuel, every
year we distribute 25 lac saplings free of cost in
Chittagong.

Biodiversity Corners & Farmers Training on Biodiver-
sity

We acknowledge that we have both an impact and
dependence on biodiversity, through our business opera-
tions and use of ecosystem services, such as forest
products, soil and water. For this, we have established 26
biodiversity corners (on 25 acre of land) with the help of
our registered farmers in order to acknowledge our
farming communities about the importance of different
elements in nature and their contribution in the ecosys-
tem. It exhibits extinct species and their inputs for
conserving nature. Our plan is to set up 11 biodiversity
centres in different growing locations every year. Our
biodiversity corners are located in Kushtia, Meherpur,
Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manikganj, Bandarban,
Khagrachari and Cox’s Bazar districts.

IPM, FFS & PPE

BAT Bangladesh established the first Integrated Pest
Management (IPM) Club in 2005 to support the farmers
for better crop management in Chechua Leaf Area,
Kushtia. For last couple of years BAT Bangladesh has
established a number of IPM clubs at its different Leaf
growing locations with an aim to drive farmers’
education/awareness regarding the non-chemical alterna-
tives to pest management & safe use of Agrochemicals.
The objective of IPM clubs is to reinforce government
initiatives to reduce use of agrochemicals. One of our
main focuses was to promote the usage of Neem Leaf
Decoction. Thus, we ensured installation of Neem Decoc-
tion Machines beside our IPM clubs. The IPM club is led by
a committee comprising of BATB representatives and
local leading tobacco farmers. We provide our crop
related training and briefing to the farmers in the IPM
clubs.

To embed the concept of IPM among the farmers, BATB
has been running Farmers Field School (FFS) in partnership
with Department of Agricultural Extension (DAE). The FFS
approach to drive IPM has made the IPM clubs as a power
house for disseminating knowledge on pest management
through non-chemical alternatives. This is a field
orientated and participatory programme placing empha-
sis on learning by doing. Training takes place over an
extended period and is a combination of classroom and
field work. Moreover, IPM clubs are now contributing to
create trained resources for IPM education and training.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED

73



N
N
Agggglggggggggg-r.

;i |

!

At present, we have 35 IPM clubs and have organised 26
FFS.

This initiative is to make sure that agro-chemicals are
applied only when is assessed to be a must & with all
necessary precautions. Formal trainings to farmers are
ensured as per training calendar. Our plan is to build 11
IPM clubs, organise 11 FFS and distribute 1500 sets of PPE’s
to farmers free of cost every year.

Soil Fertility: Improving Soil Health

Green Manuring With Dhaincha
Bangladesh has low OM (organic matter) content in soil
predominantly due to very high crop intensity.

BAT Bangladesh has introduced couple of initiatives
among its farmers with a view to reduce need for chemi-
cal fertilisers & essentially to replenish the nitrogen
content & organic matter level in the soil. In that, Green
Manuring with ‘Dhaincha’ (Sesbania sp.) cultivation is one
of the most effective bio-friendly approaches. Dhaincha
fixes atmospheric nitrogen through its root nodules and
hence when it is ploughed back to the soil, the nitrogen
as well as organic matter content of the soil is increased.
Through strong motivational activities, distribution of
free seeds, demonstrating the cultivation processes &
educating on its benefits, BATB has been able to success-
fully manage introducing this initiative among its farmers
since 2000 with 20 tons of seed. Distribution continued
every year with a plan to cover 75% of registered
farmers by 2014.This year we have supplied 152 tons of
free Dhaincha seeds and ensured coverage of 30%
farmers as targeted in 2011. BATB organise motivational
campaign and provide technical support/ training
/demonstration. The fast growing Dhaincha at its vegeta-
tive growing stage (45-55 days) are ploughed down &
incorporated into the soil & then irrigated for faster

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

decomposition (10-15 days).

Compost Pit

As a part of bio-friendly agricultural practices, we
provide the know-how and bear full costs to install
compost pits in the homesteads of the tobacco farmers.
This significantly reduces dependency on the use of
chemical fertilisers for agricultural productions and also
decreases the cost of production. We plan to establish 80
compost pits in leaf growing areas every year.

HYV (High Yielding Variety): In support of vertical
growth instead of horizontal

We are replacing the conventional variety by hybrid
varieties which has the potential to increase yield by 25%
and this will result in less occupancy of land for tobacco
cultivation.

Control Irrigation Management: Tube Irrigation

We have introduced irrigation with recycled poly tube to
reduce the water consumption needed for tobacco
cultivation and to conserve this important natural
resource. This ensures that only the required level of
water is used and there is no wastage (percolation,
leaching, runoff etc.).




DEEPTO

To complement Bangladesh Government'’s efforts in the
renewable energy sector, British American Tobacco
Bangladesh (BATB) has undertaken a project to install
Solar Home Systems in remote areas of Chittagong Hill

Tracts, free of cost. The Project is titled ‘Deepto’
(meaning lighted). Under Deepto, BATB has already
installed 576 units of Solar Home Systems in four remote
villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari districts, giving
rural families their first access to electricity at home.

British American Tobacco Bangladesh strongly believes
that the business must demonstrate responsibility in
everything it does. The Company is highly committed to
responsible behaviour which is an integral part of its
sustainability agenda. It believes that the business has a
key role to play in helping society to achieve the neces-
sary sustainable balance of economic growth, environ-
mental protection and social progress in ways that will
build value for all our stakeholders, including our
shareholders.

In Bangladesh, around 50 percent people do not have
access to the electricity. Government of Bangladesh has
an agenda to bring the entire country under electricity
service by the year 2020 in phases, with the direction of

the Article 16 of ‘The Constitution of the People’s Repub-
lic of Bangladesh,” removing the disparity in the standards
of living between the urban and rural areas through rural
electrification and development. Energy is one of the
basic ingredients required to alleviate poverty and
socio-economic development. Worldwide, there is a
major transition underway in the energy sector due to
decline in fossil fuel availability, need to drastically cut
global emissions for mitigating climate change (80%
reduction by 2050) and need for energy security. With an
objective to reduce greenhouse emissions and energy
scarcity prompting an alternate source of energy which
does not cause carbon emission.

Bangladesh has set a target to generate 5% of total
electricity demand from renewable sources by 2015 and
10 percent by 2020. Renewable energy is energy, which
comes from natural resources such as sunlight, wind, rain,
tides, and geo thermal heat, which are renewable (natural
replenished). Bangladesh has achieved a landmark
achievement in implementing renewable energy expan-
sion programme through installing Solar Home Systems
(SHS) across the country to increase access to electricity
among the people living in off grid, isolated and in acces-
sible remote areas. Solar-home-system uses a photovol-
taic (solar-electric) module to provide power for lights
and small appliances.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED




AFFORESTATION

BAT Bangladesh’s national award winning
Afforestation programme stepped into 32nd
year

Afforestation is the flagship CSR programme of
BAT Bangladesh. The Company has so far distrib-
uted around 71.5 million saplings free of cost over
the last 31 years. It is the largest afforestation
effort by any private sector business entity in
Bangladesh.

British American Tobacco (BAT) Bangladesh
launched its Nationwide Afforestation Campaign
on 22 June 2011 in Dhaka marking 31 years of its
afforestation journey. The Company initiated its
afforestation programme in 1980 when the Forest
Department called on the private sector to
support its endeavour to conserve the forests.

Last year, BAT Bangladesh distributed 4.0 million
saplings to various organisations and individuals
across Bangladesh.
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[ The State Minister (then) for Environment and
! Forests Dr Hasan Mahmud MP inaugurated the
: event as the Chief Guest. Mr. A. F. M. Bahauddin
| Nasim, General Secretary, Krishibid Institution, Mr.
[ Md. Habibur Rahman, Director General, Depart-
! ment of Agricultural Extension and Mr. Monowar
‘ Islam, Director General, Department of Environ-
: ment attended the event as Special Guests.
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The Chief Guest lauded BAT Bangladesh’s pioneer-
ing role in afforestation. He also called on individu-
als and corporate houses to contribute to the
government’s afforestation initiatives. Appreciat-
ing BAT Bangladesh’s CSR initiatives such as safe
drinking water project Probaho and sustainable
agriculture, Dr Mahmud also urged private sector
to be more involved in CSR.

Mr Arun Kaul, Managing Director, BAT Bangladesh
thanked the Government for its immense support
to BAT Bangladesh’s CSR activities. Mr. Arun said
‘It is people who make the movement successful;
it is people who make our efforts count. | would
like to take this opportunity to thank the recipi-
ents and participants in our sapling distribution
programme, the nursery owners, farmers, private
institutions and common people who have come
forward and accepted the responsibility to plant
and care for the saplings we have provided.’

Mr. Zakir Ibne Hai, Head of Corporate and Regula-
tory Affairs, BAT Bangladesh, commented: ‘To
mitigate the impact of climate change, we should
work together to turn afforestation to a social
movement. We are highly committed to support
the government’s initiatives towards building a
greener Bangladesh.’
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BAT Bangladesh in the News

[

S n e

o

Bl ey

W
- .1

e STy g iy
Mie Pa e b)) e
iy St gin e Ry e

iy s TS

et e g S e
- o o Foi W seetey
g = Y ey s mg e p oy SR
T ow ey e T TR g W T
oIEF 8 s, 4 8 e =

"Lﬁ--“_._—l_“-

e —
D e e e s e e L
—r

3
3
|

i
it
v Il

T]III ¥
il y
lyirHd I

T

|

!
il

o T

Art camp on national £].

anthem: o

'-..-4-1-:—----.-.---\.-.-.-_..' T,

e e e e
My oy g

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED

77



78

SONG OF OUR MOTHERLAND

...a story of an art exhibition
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In 1905, during the period of Bangabhanga (partition of Bengal), Bengal was at a cross-road, both geographically and
ideologically. Rabindranath Tagore (1861-1941) wrote an impassioned and timeless song to rekindle the unified spirit of
Bengal. The lyrics first appeared in the September 1905 issue of Bangadarshan and in a collection of songs. Baul,
simultaneously and the musical notation first appeared in the musical journal Bijnan Prabeshika in the same month and
year. It is said that the tune was inspired by the Baul singer Gagan Harkara's song “Ami Kothay Pabo Tare”, which
Tagore had come to appreciate during his stay in the then East Bengal countryside on his houseboat ‘Padma’ during the
1980's. The result was a moving composition which has remained a source of inspiration for generations of Bengalis.
During Bangladesh’s war of liberation in 1971, the song once again inspired our valiant freedom fighters; and after
independence, in 1972, the new country adopted the first ten lines of the song as its national anthem. The lyrics of the
anthem are reproduced below in the official English translation.

My Bengal of gold, | love you.
Forever your skies, your air set my heart in tune
as if it were a flute.
In Spring, Oh mother mine, the fragrance from
your mango-groves makes me wild with joy,
Ah, what a thrilll
In Autumn, Oh mother mine, in the full-blossomed paddy fields,
I have seen spread all over sweet smiles!
Ah, what beauty, what shades, what an affection
and what a tenderness!
What a quilt have you spread at the feet of
banyan trees and along the banks of rivers!
Oh mother mine, words from your lips are like
Nectar to my eyes!
Ah, what a thrilll!
If sadness, Oh mother mine, casts a gloom on your face
my eyes are filled with tears!

By a happy coincidence of history, the year 2011 was the 40th anniversary of the independence of Bangladesh, and the
sesquicentenaries of Rabindranath Tagore. As a tribute to the spirit of our independence and the timeless verses of the
national anthem which stir our soul every day, some of the most celebrated artist of the country were invited to portray
their rendition of the national anthem on canvas. They were also asked to visually express the feelings evoked by our
beloved motherland, the land of green and gold, of seasonal variations, of affection and tenderness, sadness and mirth.

British American Tobacco Bangladesh and Bengal Gallery of Fine Arts jointly organised an art camp in Kushtia, a land
blessed by Rabindranath Tagore and mystic poet Lalan Shah. Twelve distinguished artists, from Qayyum Chowdhury to
Anisuzzaman, spanning nearly three generations, came up with some spectacular renderings of the imagery and
feelings that contribute to the lasting appeal of the song. In doing so, some artists moved away from the first ten lines
of the song to extend their search for inspiring imagery. The result has been a glorious re-enactment of the vision and
imagination of Tagore in paint.
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Mohamamd Eunus | In Spring, Oh mother mine, the fragrance from your
mango-groves makes me wild with joy

Shahid Kabir | What a quilt have you spread at the feet of banyan trees and
along the banks of rivers.

Qayyum Chowdhury | In Spring, Oh mother mine, the fragrance from your
mango-groves makes me wild with joy

Anisuzzaman | In Autumn, Oh mother mine, in the full-blossomed paddy fields,
I have seen spread all over sweet smiles

§ d 1 3 A
Tayeba Begum Lipi | What a quilt have you spread at the feet of banyan trees
and along the banks of rivers
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Samarjit Roy Choudhury | Oh mother mine, words from your lips are like
nectar to my ears

Hashem Khan | In your rural expanse covered with shades and resounding
bird songs

Kanak Chanpa Chakma | What lamp do you light as the day ends and
evening descends?

LR

boa
Mohammad Igbal | In your rural expanse covered with shades and resounding
bird songs

Farida Zaman | The days of our lives are spent in your yard full of paddy

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Rafiqun Nabi | Oh mother, we are all your cowhands, your peasants



Finance Minister of Bangladesh inaugurated BATB’s Art Exhibition

An Art Exhibition titled ‘Song of our Motherland’, jointly
organised by BAT Bangladesh and Bengal Gallery of Fine
Arts, a leading Art Gallery of the country, was inaugu-
rated by the Honourable Finance Minister of Bangladesh,
Mr. Abul Maal Abdul Muhith on 19 December.

The theme of the exhibition was Bangladesh’'s National
Anthem written by Rabindranath Tagore, to mark the
40th anniversary of the independence of Bangladesh, and
the sesquicentennary of the Nobel Laureate Poet.

BATB and Bengal Gallery of Fine Arts jointly organised an
art camp where twelve of the most celebrated artists of
Bangladesh came up with their rendition of the National
Anthem on canvas.

The Finance Minister commented during his speech: “I
was questioned why | am attending an event that
involves a tobacco company. | don't see any issue in
supporting a noble initiative.”

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman of BAT Bangladesh along
with Mr. Arun Kaul, Managing Director and Mr. Zakir lbne

Hai, Head of CORA were present at the ceremony.

"BAT Bangladesh'’s affiliation with Art and Culture is deep
rooted just like our presence in Bangladesh. We have had
the honour of featuring paintings inspired by eminent
poet Shamsur Rahman’s poem on our calendar before.
Many leading artists of the country have worked in their
formative years in different art projects initiated by us.
2011 being the International Year of Forests, we themed
our Corporate Calendar around paintings on Forests”,
Arun mentioned during his speech.

“We are honoured to get the opportunity to pay a
humble tribute to the spirit of Bangladesh’s independence
and the timeless verses of the country’s national anthem
through this art exhibition”, Arun added.

The exhibition has received positive media coverage with
1 articles in Top Tier print media and 5 electronic cover-
age on prime time news. Twelve of the paintings have
been featured on BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Calendar
and Diary for 2012.
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BAT Bangladesh supports a
campaign to plant 200,000 saplings
in just one hour

British American Tobacco Bangladesh partnered with
Bangladesh Poribesh Forum (BPF), a local environmental
advocacy group, to plant 200,000 trees within just one
hour along a 200-mile stretch of coast on July 23, 2011

Bangladesh has been identified as one of the two
countries most vulnerable to the impacts of climate
change over the next 30 years, according to the British
global risks analysis company Maplecroft. The objective
of BPF's campaign was to protect the endangered coastal
belt and create mass awareness about climate change.
BAT Bangladesh supported the programme by providing
all the saplings free of cost.

Around 7,000 residents of the coastal area of Bangladesh,
mostly fisherman and farmers, were engaged in 76
locations to carry out the massive programme. Key
Government stakeholders including State Minister (then)
for Environment and Forests Dr. Hasan Mahmud,
Chittagong City Corporation Mayor Mohammad Manjur
Alam and Former Adviser to the Caretaker Government
Dr. Hossain Zillur Rahman attended the programme.

As the event broke two previous records of ‘Most trees
planted simultaneously’ and ‘Most trees planted in one
hour’; it was nominated to be awarded and recorded in
"The Guiness Book of World Records”

The State Minister commented, “This is a great initiative
and would go a long way in building awareness about the
importance of tree plantation in grassroots and help
mitigate the impact of climate change.”

BAT Bangladesh’s Head of HR Syeed Imtiaz Faruque also
attended the event and led the cross-functional team
with members from Leaf and CORA team.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

The ever highest Dhaincha seed
purchase in the history of
BAT Bangladesh

BAT Bangladesh, being one of the pioneers in introducing
Dhaincha cultivation as an alternative crop, has changed
the lifestyle of its farmers. This year the Company
purchased a staggering 1,50,000 kg of Dhaincha seeds,
the highest ever purchase in the history of BAT Bangla-
desh.

Dhaincha (generic name: Sesbania) is a crop generally
cultivated for its nutritive value to soil. It is an ideal green
manure crop as it is quick-growing, succulent, easily
decomposable with low moisture requirements and
produces maximum amount of organic matter and
nitrogen in the soil.

It has been almost a decade that British American
Tobacco Bangladesh has introduced the initiative for its
farmers to reduce the increased need for chemical
fertilizers and essentially replenish the nitrogen content
in the soil. Dhaincha cultivation, being the most
bio-friendly effective approach has made wonders in the
soils of the company’s registered farmers in Kushtia,
Jhenaidah, Meherpur, Chuadanga, Bandaran, Cox’s Bazar,
Khagrachari, Rangamati, Manikganj and Rangpur.

The Dhaincha Seed Distribution Programme 2011 kicked
off from Allardarga Leaf Region. During the distribution
programme in Allardarga, Mr.Hasanul Haque, Director,
Plant Protection Wing, DAE, Khamarbari, who was the
chief guest said in his speech, “I thank BAT Bangladesh on
behalf of Department of Agriculture Extension for taking
the noble initiative in distributing Dhaincha seeds. BAT
Bangladesh has supported our project to enhance fertili-
sation by providing this crop.” Mr. Ayub Hossain, Quaran-
tine Entomologist, DAE, Khamarbari and Mr. Nazmul
Karim, Plant Protection Specialist - DAE - Kushtia graced
the occasion as special guests.




BAT Bangladesh partners with
Economic Reporters’ Forum (ERF)

BRimisy AMERIC

BAT Bangladesh has partnered with Economic Reporters’
Forum (ERF) to recognise ‘Excellence in Economic Journal-
ism’. Founded in 1995, ERF is an association representing
more than 150 print and broadcast journalists of the
country and is a strategically important stakeholder
group for the Company.

Honourable Finance Minister of Bangladesh, Mr. Abul Maal
Abdul Muhith, MP was present as the Chief Guest in the
award ceremony held on 23 October, 2011 in Dhaka. Dr.
Moshiur Rahman, Adviser to the Prime Minister on
Economic Affairs was present as Special Guest.

The Finance Minister commended the initiative and said,
“Economic Reporting is different from the other streams
of journalism as economic reporters need to develop a
strong knowledge base supported by thorough research
and in-depth understanding. | welcome the creation of a
platform like ERF Award to honour the contribution of
the economic reporters. Such initiative serves two
purposes: firstly it encourages journalists for constructive
reporting and secondly it sets a benchmark for evaluating
quality reports.”

Leading economic reporters from both print and
electronic media applied for the award and a Jury Board
consisting of noted economists and media personalities
of Bangladesh selected the three best reports on General
Economy, Banking and Trade & Commerce. Total 14
journalists were nominated in the three categories. Key
economic policy makers of the Government of Bangla-
desh and distinguished economists and Think Tanks of
the country were present during the programme.

Dr. Mohammad Tareque, Finance Secretary; Dr. A B Mirza
Md. Azizul Islam, Former Finance Advisor, Caretaker
Government; Kazi Kholiquzzaman, Chairman, Palli Karma
Shahayak Foundation (PKSF) attended the event among
others.

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman, BAT Bangladesh along
with the Board Members and EXCO represented the
Company in the event.

BAT Bangladesh wins 15 First Prizes
in local ‘Tree Fairs’ in leaf growing
areas

BAT Bangladesh participated in 15 local ‘Tree Fairs’ in
Kushtia, Meherpur, Jhenidah, Khagrachari, Bandarban and
Manikgonj districts. These fairs, held in district and
upazilla levels, are jointly organised by respective Local
District Administration, Forest Department and Depart-
ment of Agriculture Extension. Last year, BAT Bangladesh
successfully received first prizes in all these fairs in the
‘Best Organisation’ category for its contribution in
sapling distribution.

These Tree Fairs provide a platform for stakeholder
engagement in the leaf growing areas and also help to
create public awareness about the Company’s Afforesta-
tion Programme. BAT Bangladesh’s Leaf team also show-
caseds the variety and quality of the saplings through
these fairs. The saplings were directly taken from the
enlisted nurseries and distributed free of cost during
these fairs.

Key government officials participated in the fairs includ-
ing the local Members of Parliament (MP). Mr. Md. Abdul
Hai, MP, |Jhenidah-1 attended and handed over the first
prize in Jhenidah while Mr. Beer Bahadur, MP, Bandarban
and Mr. Jatindra Lal Tripura, MP, Khagrachari inaugurated
the Tree Fair in Bandarban and Khagrachari respectively.
All the important stakeholders visited BAT Bangladesh’s
stall and commended the Company’s afforestation
programme.

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED

83



L _.uw?u.
X .x..__ _ = e
.
P L= =]
i .
|..l...u 11 _%...
A
b
]

=
1)
~N
=
-4
o
o
w
o
-
<
=)
z
=
<




BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED




86

.

The grand finale of Battle of Minds (BOM) 201
was held on the 22nd of December at the
Radisson Water Garden Hotel, organised by
British American Tobacco Bangladesh (BATB).
BOM is a competition where the undergraduate-
level students of Bangladesh get a chance to
showcase their innovative business skills. Teams
go through grueling qualifying rounds to get to
the grand finale, where they present their ideas
to a panel of expert judges.

The primary phase of the BOM campaign kicked
off in October of 2011. Entrants came in from 49
universities throughout the country, but only 12
teams were selected. Out of the primary 12, only
6 made it to the grand final.

The main event began with a speech from Mr.
Syed Imtiaz Faruque, Head of HR, BATB. He
expounded the fact that BOM is a brand associ-
ated with the ideals of passion, progressive
thinking, personal development, partnership and
intellectual contribution towards the nation. The
slogan of the event was “Bring Your Difference”
which the chief guest, Mr. Arun Kaul, Managing
Director of BAT Bangladesh, reiterated in his
speech. He also mentioned that the energetic
participants embody the passion and individual-
ity that is encouraged at BATB.

By this point the ball room was buzzing with the
entrepreneurs of tomorrow. The hall was filled
with projectors, displaying business presenta-
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tions, cameras, lights and posters of the
contestants themselves. The air was
palpable with excitement, as the minds
of tomorrow awaited their chance to
shine.

What followed was a day of brainstorm-
ing, problem solving, planning and
pitching; with each team laying their
cards on the table in an effort to wow
the judges. In the end, although each
team put forth brilliant ideas,
‘Eco-Vision” from Khulna University
emerged the victors. They came up with
a realistic carbon-power based produc-
tion plan that is very cost effective for a
developing country like Bangladesh. This
CDM (Clean Development Mechanism)
may help Bangladesh save around
$40,000 each year in the power sector.
Mega Minds from North South Univer-
sity took second place, the position of
the second runners up went to Jugger-
nauts, once again from Khulna Univer-
sity.

The event ended with the prize giving
ceremony where the winning team
received crests, certificates and
flowers. Mr. Arun Kaul, Managing Direc-
tor of BATB, and Mr. Kamrul Hasan,
non-executive director of BATB handed
over the prizes to the winning teams.
The BOM winners of 2011 later on took
photographs with the other partici-
pants, judges and the guests.

More than 60 participants who
previously took part in the competition
are now working in different managerial
positions in BATB and after yet another
successful edition they will definitely
recruit a few more. The BATB Battle of
Minds 2011 event was partnered by
UNYSAB, Ogilvy, PeopleScape and
Bengal Solution.

This was a hugely successful event and
is fast growing in popularity as an annual
institution. It is a great way to foster
the younger generation; to get them to
think about the real life issues that are
affecting our nation. BOM has now
become an event that the young
geniuses really look forward to, as a
platform where their ideas can be heard
and maybe even implemented. Once
again BATB has proven that corpora-
tions can make a huge difference in
society, providing a way forward into
the future.

Champion team 'Eco-Vision' from Khulna University

First Runner up team 'Mega Minds' from North South University
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SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE TOBACCO PRODUCTION

BAT Bangladesh replacing the conventional
variety by hybrid varieties which has the
potential to increase yield by 25% and this
will result in less occupancy of land for
tobacco cultivation.
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Proxy Form

I/We

of

a Member of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited, hereby appoint

a. Mr./Mrs.

of

or failing him/her

b. Mr./Mrs.

of

either of them may, in writing, appoint anyone to act as my proxy at the 39th Annual General

Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 11 April 2012 and at any adjournment thereof

As witness by our hand on this
Shareholder's

Signature:

Name:

BO/Folio:

Witness

Signature:

Name:

Address:

Specimen Signature of the proxies

Name

Name

Revenue
Stamp

Note: The proxy form duly completed must be deposited at the Company's registered office, New DOHS Road,
Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, by 10:30 a.m. of 9 April 2012, otherwise the proxy form will not be accepted.
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BRITISH AMERICAN
TOBACCO
BANGLADESH

SUCCESS AND RESPONSIBILITY GO TOGETHER

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
New D.O.H.S. Road Mohakhali
Dhaka 1206, P.O. Box 6069 Bangladesh
Tel: +88 02 8822791-5, +88 02 8827646-8, +88 02 8829716-8
Fax: +88 02 8822786, Web: www.batbangladesh.com



	00
	01-page.00-08 copy
	02-page.09-16 copy
	03 page.17-24 copy
	04 page.25-32 copy
	05 page.33-40 copy
	06 page.41-48 copy
	07 page.49-56 copy
	08 page.57-64 copy
	09 page.65-72 copy
	10 page.73-80 copy
	11 page.81-88 copy
	12 page.89-96 copy
	13 page.97-104 copy
	14 page.105-112 copy
	15 page.113-120 copy

